
Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764626 
e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 
AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL

Date & Time - Tuesday, 12 February 2019 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel:

Councillors: B Alcock, G R Aley, D Ashby, J R Astill, F Biggadike, M D Booth, 
C J T H Brewis, G K Dark, H Drury, L J Eldridge, P C Foyster, R Grocock, A Harrison, 
J L King, J D McLean, A M Newton, J L Reynolds, M D Seymour, S-A Slade, E J Sneath, 
A C Tennant, J Tyrrell, J Whitbourn, A R Woolf and S Wray

Revised quorum 9.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  4 February 2019



A G E N D A

1. Election of Chairman 

2. Apologies for absence 

3. Declaration of Interests
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation.

4. Customer Access Strategy
To give consideration to a new strategy which aims to improve 
residents’ experience of contacting South Holland District Council while 
also increasing the efficiency of the Council’s overall operating 
arrangements (report of the Shared Executive Manager, Information is 
enclosed).

(Pages 
3 - 62)

5. ICT & Digital Strategy and Digital Work Programme 
To give consideration to a new strategy which aims to improve 
residents’ experience of contacting South Holland District Council while 
also increasing the efficiency of our overall operating arrangements 
(report of the Shared Executive Manager, Information is enclosed).

(Pages 
63 - 
142)

6. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent 



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Cllr Tracey Carter, Portfolio Holder for Governance and Customer  
Maxine O’Mahony, Executive Director for Strategy and Governance

To: Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel, 12 
February 2019

Author: Sarah Barsby, Shared Executive Manager Information

Subject Customer Access Strategy

Purpose: To implement a new strategy which aims to improve residents’ experience of 
contacting South Holland District Council while also increasing the efficiency 
of our overall operating arrangements

Recommendation: 

1) That the content of the report and attached draft Customer Access Strategy be noted and 
comments and feedback provided.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.2 At a November meeting of the joint Performance Monitoring Panel (PMP) and Policy 
Development Panel (PDP), Members raised a number of questions and/or concerns 
relating to the draft Customer Access Strategy, Digital & ICT Strategy, and associated 
Digital Work Programme. 

With specific regard to the Customer Access Strategy (see Appendix A), further information 
and reassurance was sought on:

 How/if the strategy has been tailored to the specific needs of SHDC (addressed in 
section 4 of this report)

 The involvement of CPBS, as the Council’s service delivery partner, in the strategy’s 
development (addressed in section 3.3 of this report)

 Consultation with East Lindsey District Council, as a shared client of CPBS, on the 
strategy’s content – with particular regard to the proposed Customer Charter service 
standards (addressed in section 3.3 of this report)

 The level of support that would be available to those who cannot access digital services 
and concern that telephone and face-to-face may not be available to those that need it 
(addressed in sections 4.3, 5.4 and 9.2 of this report)

 The relevance of the Council’s customer personas/insight – and how these help us to 
design more relevant services that people want as well as need (addressed in section 
4.4 of this report)

1.3 In response to this feedback, a series of member engagement sessions were held from 14-
16 January, with the aim of providing further detail and reassurance on the Council’s digital 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4.



ambition, which is underpinned by both its draft Customer Access Strategy and draft Digital 
and ICT strategy.

1.4 A total of 26 Members (including Cllr Tracey Carter and Cllr Malcolm Chandler, who 
introduced the sessions), out of a potential 37, attended the sessions. Notes were taken at 
each event, with comments and questions grouped together and paraphrased to develop a 
set of FAQs (Frequently Asked Questions) which have since been shared with all 
Members, including those unable to attend. FAQs are available to view in Appendix B of 
this report, with engagement session slides contained in Appendix C.

1.5 In addition to the FAQs in Appendix B, the content of this report has also been reviewed to 
address the Member feedback outlined in section 1.2.

2.0 SUMMARY
.

2.1 The draft Customer Access Strategy has been designed to support the wider aims of the 
South Holland Corporate Plan and its corporate priorities. In particular to ‘provide the right 
services, at the right time and in the right way’. Specifically, it seeks to transform the way in 
which customers – residents, businesses and visitors – are able to access information, 
advice and services. 

2.2 The strategy, therefore, provides an opportunity for the Council to not only improve 
customer experience of accessing services, but also to create efficiencies through the 
increased take-up of more cost-effective contact channels.

2.3 It also builds on the work already undertaken as part of the Council’s Moving Forward 
Programme which has implemented a number of customer service improvements, 
including:

- A new, redesigned website, which can be accessed on smart phones and tablets, as 
well as desktop computers. Residents with hearing or visual impairments can view the 
website content in extra-large font/text to assist people with visual impairments, and 
sound/audio buttons are designed to benefit those with hearing impairments.

- Digital assistance for customers needing help to access Council services online 
through the Council’s Priory Road office. 

- Online book and pay technology, to provide customers with easier and more 
convenient ways to book and pay for Council services, while saving officer processing 
time.

- ‘My Account’ online search feature, enabling customers to search by postcode for 
more relevant and personalised, map-based information about Council services. Eg: 
Bin collection days

- Online forms, enabling customers to communicate easily and efficiently with services, 
reducing response times and processing costs.

- Co-location with DWP (Department for Work and Pensions) at the Council’s Priory 
Road office, to provide a more joined-up service for shared customers.

Page 4



2.4 At the same time, the Council recognises that not all customers have the digital skills or 
technology necessary to access its services online, and that it is important to make sure 
that no-one is disadvantaged by its plans to digitalise its services. 

So while encouraging people, wherever possible and practical, to access services online, 
all customers will continue to be able to get the help and support they need in a variety of 
different ways, including face-to-face and telephone contact.

3.0 STRATEGY

3.1 The strategy seeks to create modern and relevant access arrangements which are tailored 
to meet the changing needs of all Council customers, while responding positively to the 
financial pressures faced by the authority and to target our most personalised contact 
arrangements (i.e. telephone and face-to-face) at those who are most vulnerable or have 
more complex enquiries.

3.2 Strategy ambitions
Underpinning the strategy is a set of high level ambitions which will help shape the way we 
manage our current customer contact handling arrangements:

 To always provide the best possible customer experience
 To provide services that are built around customers’ needs
 To provide online services so good people choose to use them
 To focus on those that need support – the digitally excluded
 To continually look to improve what we do through customer feedback
 To maintain all existing contact channels

The strategy proposes to set a goal to increase the number of web-based interactions from 
their current level of 3.1% of total customer interactions to 50% of total customer 
interactions by 2022. 

3.3 Strategy development
The draft strategy has been developed in consultation with senior officers, and the portfolio 
holder for Governance and Customer. In addition, it has been shared direct with East 
Lindsey District Council for information and comment, as well as CPBS, as the Council’s 
delivery partner for Customer Services. CPBS has confirmed it is supportive of the 
strategy’s intent and that its current operating model is capable of meeting the strategy’s 
requirements.

4.0 CUSTOMER INSIGHT

4.1 Some of the drivers of the strategy are changing customer habits, preferences and 
expectations.  Increasingly, people are embracing new technologies and using them in their 
everyday lives. This can be seen in the way people now manage their finances, book a 
holiday or do their supermarket shopping – all of which can be done at a time that suits 
them, quickly and conveniently, and which in the vast majority of cases delivers what they 
want.

Page 5



The majority of residents access the internet on a regular basis, with 87% having been 
online in the last three months:
- Most have the necessary connectivity to access online services with 93% having 

access to broadband speeds of more than 10Mb per second. 
- Many (75%) also have the basic digital skills needed to benefit from online services

4.2 The Council believes there is potential for more of its customers to self-serve, providing the 
online services it offers are easy-to-access and simple to understand. Recent experience, 
for example, has shown the Council that more than 80% of customers will self-serve online 
where the service is easy-to-use and simple to understand. (E.g. Garden waste online 
service).

4.3 As a result, the Council wants to encourage customers, wherever possible and practical, to 
access services and information direct from its website (i.e. self-serve) so that we can focus 
our more personalised contact arrangements on those that need our help the most.

4.4 The Council is particularly mindful, however, that while 75% of residents have the basic 
digital skills needed to access services online, a further 25% of residents who don’t 
currently have these skills should not feel disadvantaged. These customers will still be able 
to contact the Council by more traditional means such as telephone but should be 
supported to either develop these new skills, if they wish to, or receive the help they need 
using other contact methods.

Further details of how the Council proposes to do this are set out in section 5.4 of this 
report.

4.4 Customer personas
To help design online services that are relevant to – and meet the needs of – its customers, 
the Council has created a set of ‘customer personas’ which represent its key customer 
types. They are fictitious, but are based on trusted sources of national and local data to 
help create a picture of who the Council’s customers are (Eg: their lifestyles, the way they 
prefer to access information and services, and their digital skills). 

In the draft strategy presented to the joint meeting of PMP and PDP in November 2018, 
Members requested that these were removed from the final Customer Access Strategy 
document before publication. This has since been actioned.

5.0 STRATEGY FEATURES

5.1 Channel Strategy
The Council will prioritise online and automated services, wherever possible, focusing face-
to-face support on those that need our help the most. 

Phone calls will be answered promptly, but not in preference to other more efficient contact 
channels.

The Council will only promote one contact number. This will backed up with in-depth 
training to help resolve the majority of issues at the first point of contact – only handing off 
calls to services for more complex issues.

Page 6



5.2 Revised customer charter
This sets out our commitment to customers and our expectations of them. It also creates a 
set of standards for how we will acknowledge and respond to enquiries and requests, in a 
way that supports our channel strategy. 

For example, for service requests and enquiries, online is the quickest channel to access 
services; letters take the longest. For complaints and FOIs, lengthier timescales allow for 
more detailed responses and often, more than one service needing to contribute 
information.

5.3 Set of digital principles
These align to government best practice standards and have been developed so that all 
council departments and their staff are signed up to working in a consistent way when 
reviewing or redesigning services.

5.4 Digital inclusion strategy
This proposes how we will work with partners to improve the digital skills of our residents, 
as this will be critical to achieving the strategy’s vision. For example, face-to-face support 
available at the Council’s Priory Road office, where customers are being supported to 
develop their digital skills and awareness to access information and services online.

For those customers who feel unable or unwilling to increase their digital skills, access to all 
council services remains available by contacting the Council by telephone or by visiting in 
person. Efficiencies will still be achieved in these cases by the adoption of Assisted 
Service. This is where Customer Contact Centre staff use the same online methods to 
report issues as residents, with the information being fed into the same improved 
processes as those reporting issues directly online. Where the resident has an email 
address or phone that can receive text messages, they will still be fully updated on the 
progress of the reported issue.

6.0 OPTIONS

6.1 Note the contents of the report and draft Customer Access Strategy and provide comments 
and feedback.

6.2 Do nothing.

7.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

7.1 The strategy sets out a clear plan for making best use of Council resources to meet the 
needs of its customers, achieving value for money for the Council and its residents.

Not only does the strategy aim to improve services, it also anticipates a reduction in costs 
over the three-year period, through increased productivity, automation of service 
processes, and as more customers seek to access Council services online.

(More detail on this is provided in the draft Digital and ICT Strategy report within the 
agenda pack for this meeting.)

Page 7



8.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

8.1 By providing quicker and more efficient access to information, advice and services through 
digital channels, the Council will be able to provide an improved customer experience.

8.2 As more customers choose – and expect – to transact with the Council via its website, the 
Council anticipates being able to make significant savings to its customer service 
operations.

8.3 More personalised support for vulnerable customers, or those with complex enquiries, by 
offering appointments at a time that suits them.

8.4 Providing digital support to build customers’ skills and confidence, enabling them to access 
online services.

9.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional & 
Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human 
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding; 
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; Other. Where 
the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of these 
headings, these are identified below.

9.1 Corporate Priorities
The strategy supports the Council’s Corporate Plan priority of ‘providing the right service, in 
the right way at the right time’ by providing easy access to information, advice and support 
through multiple access channels.

9.2 Equality and Diversity/Human Rights
9.2.1 Residents, businesses and visitors will continue to be able to contact the Council by any of 

the following channels:

- Web
- Telephone
- Post or email
- Face-to-face
- Social media

In turn, the Council will contact those residents, businesses and visitors by web chat, 
telephone, post, email and social media.

9.2.2 Web:
South Holland District Council’s website aims to conform to Level AA of the web content 
accessibility guidelines of the World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) which particularly 
considers protected groups, including people with disabilities.

The Council’s website also features the option of a ‘Recite Me’ toolbar, which makes 
content more accessible with reading and translation support. Text can also be downloaded 
as an MP3 audio file.

Page 8



Residents with hearing or visual impairments can view the website content in extra-large 
font/text to assist people with visual impairments, and sound/audio buttons are designed to 
benefit those with hearing impairments.

The carers (including family and friends) of older frail residents and of children and young 
people will benefit from transacting and finding out about services online. Many carers try to 
balance caring with work and careers and they will be able to access the Council 24/7.

9.2.3 Telephone:
While the strategy aims to encourage more residents to contact the Council online, it does 
not reduce or change residents’ access to telephone contact channels to raise queries or 
access services. In fact, by the conclusion of this strategy in 2022 the Council expects that 
telephone will remain the prime source of customer contact. The strategy aims to improve 
the current service by reducing customer demand for this channel, and therefore will be of 
benefit to all groups who continue to use this as a way of contacting the Council. 

9.2.4 Face-to-face:
Face-to-face services will be reconfigured to provide greater access to self-serve facilities 
and support to use these. 

Face-to-face appointments will continue to be available for those who feel they need them 
(Eg: for more complex enquiries and more vulnerable customers) at the Council’s Priory 
Road office.

9.3 Financial
The strategy also takes account of the increasing financial pressures faced by local 
Government and the need for all councils – including South Holland Council – to ensure 
they are delivering services as cost-effectively as possible. 

The delivery of this strategy is closely linked to the ICT and Digital Strategy 2019-2022 and 
its associated Digital Work Programme, for which there is a pro forma B covering financial 
implications.

9.4 Staffing
No staffing implications at this time.

9.5 Constitution/Legal 
The Customer Access Strategy does not form part of the Council’s policy framework, and is 
consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan. There are no direct financial or staffing 
implications at this stage. As such, this is an executive decision which falls to the Cabinet to 
determine.

10.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

10.1 All wards are affected by the strategy.

11.0 ACRONYMS

11.1 W3C – World Wide Web Consortium

11.2 DWP – Department for Work and Pensions

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Sarah Barsby Shared Executive Manager Information
Telephone Number 07870 157290

Page 9



Email: sarah.barsby@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Customer Access Strategy 2019-2022
Appendix B Digital FAQs
Appendix C Member engagement session presentation slides

Page 10



 
0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OUR VISION FOR A DIGITAL COUNCIL 

CUSTOMER ACCESS 

STRATEGY  

2019 - 2022 
 

Page 11



 

CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                     P a g e | 2  

 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Our vision is to provide ‘high quality and easy 

to use services that are designed with the 

customer in mind’ and in this Customer Access 

Strategy we detail how we are achieving this. It 

explains how we are transforming the services we 

provide to the residents of South Holland and how 

we are making best use of digital technology to 

simplify the way residents engage with us. We 

want our customers to have the best possible 

experience when they use our services and to be 

able to do so 24 / 7 on any device they choose.  

In achieving this there is no compromise in our 
commitment to understanding our customers and 
their needs. We aim to increase our customers’ 
control over their experience with us whilst 
utilising digital channels as a way of delivering 
services in the most efficient way. We ask those 
customers who are able to self-serve through the 
My Account function to do so, whilst we provide 
support to help those who are less confident in 
doing this or do not have access to technology, 
reserving our most personal methods of support 
for the most vulnerable.  
 
At a time when expectation and demand is 
increasing and the resources we have available 
for us to meet these are reducing we must find 
new delivery methods that meet both the 
demands and efficiencies required of us.  
 

We will listen to our customers about their 
experiences with us and use their feedback to 
make real differences to our services. We want 
our services to be valued by those who use them. 
Customers should experience seamless 
services where they are able to access 
everything they need from us and our partners in 
one place. We are committed to providing 
services that are: 
 

 Built around our customers’ needs 

 Consistent and simple 

 Easy to use 

 Flexible 

 Cost effective  
 
Our service delivery must be focused on 
simplifying the way customers access our 
services, understanding their journey with us, 
giving them control over the services they use, 
listening to and responding to their feedback. 
Services which can be delivered digitally will be, 
allowing expensive resources to be focused on 
those services which cannot be delivered 
digitally and focus on our most vulnerable 
customers. 

Cllr Tracey Carter 

Executive Member 

Governance & Customer 

Maxine O’Mahony 

Executive Director 

Strategy & Governance 

 

Page 12



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 3  

 

 

 

 

 

To provide high quality and easy to use services that 

are designed with our customers in mind, that are 

delivered efficiently with improved value for money. 

To encourage customers to self-serve, wherever 

possible, so that we can focus our resources on the 

people who need our help the most. 

To improve the digital skills and connectivity of our 

residents and the region. 

 

OUR VISION 

•Improving 
customer 
experience 
through better 
digital services

•Adopting 
Goverment 
Digital Service 
(GDS) as our 
benchmark

Customer 
experience

• Giving our 
staff and 
elected 
members the 
right digital 
tools and 
training to 
work smarter

Productivity

• Minimising 
internal cost 
of services

• Using 
external 
providers 
where 
beneficial 
and cost 
effective

Savings

• Making it 
easier and 
more 
convenient to 
pay online

• Using digital 
marketing to 
promote our 
traded 
services

Revenue 
generation

Page 13



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 4  

 

Page 14



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 5  

  

Page 15



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 6  

 

 

OUR DIGITAL AMBITION 
 

To always provide the best possible customer experience  

We will simplify the ways customers can access our services and give them choice and control. 

They will be able to choose from multiple channels and be able to pay Council bills or charges 

24/7 using easy payment methods.  

 To provide services that are built around our customers’ needs 

Our services will reflect our customers’ needs. We will continue to expand our self-service option 

through simple user-friendly online forms linking to the ‘My Account’ customer portal. From 

here, customers can access all the services they need from any device for a consistent 

customer experience that features less waste and is more productive. 

To provide online services so good people choose to use them 

Our ambition is to provide services that residents want to use – leaving more time for us to help 

those that need additional support. 

To focus on those that need support - the digitally excluded  

Our evolving digital services allow for greater choice and better access to our services and 

information. We recognise that not everyone has the skills or access to the necessary 

equipment to take advantage of this and that the rural nature of South Holland offers its own 

challenges. For this reason we are working with the community to increase customer access 

to the right technology while also helping to improve confidence of the digitally excluded, so 

they are better able to access online services. (See appendix 3 – South Holland Council’s 

Digital Exclusion Strategy).  

Continually look to improve what we do via customer feedback  

We will continue to seek public opinion and feedback via our online feedback form and 

customer surveys. We will use this to help improve our services and products. When launching 

new services or ways of working, residents will be asked to assist with ‘user testing’ and we will 

actively seek feedback to allow positive iteration.  

Protect customers’ data 

We will ensure that our customers’ data is kept safe and will only be kept for as long as it’s 

needed, in line with the latest General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). 

 

   

 

 

 1. 

 2. 

 3. 

 4. 

 5. 

As ways of working and communicating change we will ensure nobody gets left behind. 

 6. 

Page 16



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 7  

  

I can contact the Council 

any time I want and using 

any device I choose 

It’s easy to find 

information about 

services I want to use, 

and the Council keeps me 

informed about changes 

and issues that matter to 

me 

The Council’s online 

services are easy to use, 

reliable and secure. I 

have my own account and 

I only have to log in once 

I get a consistent online 

experience whichever of 

the Council’s services I’m 

using 

I feel confident doing this, 

and can use my skills to 

do much more than 

contact the Council 

I can access the internet 

for free in a helpful and 

safe way 

There’s personalised 

support to help me go 

from an absolute beginner 

to expert user of the 

internet 

I prefer to contact the 

Council online rather than 

any other way as it saves 

me time 

The customer experience will be a positive one reflected by customers saying: 

 

Page 17



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 8  

 

 
 

Customer Access Channels Overview 
 

South Holland District Council is committed to providing customers with a choice of 

access methods that best matches the customers’ needs. 

It recognises that online represents the most efficient means of contact and where 

possible this will be the preferred channel. It does however realise that in some cases 

alternative contact methods are more appropriate. It also notes that not all of its 

customers have access to online or may lack the confidence with using it, in these 

cases the council will ensure that other contact methods remain an option and are 

easy to use, however, it will do its best to assist customers to embrace digital. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The diagram to the right 

demonstrates the 

importance of recognising 

the nature of the 

customer contact will 

dictate the most efficient 

contact means 

 

No 

Contact

Self 

Service

Automated 

Phone

Phone

E Mail

Letter

Face to Face  

Channel Effectiveness 

 

L
e
s

s
 C

o
s
t 

M
o

re
 C

o
s
t 

Our ambition is 

to have over 

50% of resident 

contacts via 

these two 

methods by 

2022 

 

Page 18



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 9  

 

Contact Strategy by Channel – in order or preference 

 
  

 Previous experience with garden waste bin sign-ups has shown that where digital processes are 

made simple and easy to use, over 80% of customers will self-serve online. 

 Provide easy-to-use, joined-up processes to allow customers to engage with the Council 24/7. 

 Give preference to online contact, wherever possible, while ensuring other channels are 

available to those that need them. 

 Expand the My Account facility so registered users can access all Council communications and 

services in one place without the need to re-enter their details. We will continue to add new 

features that allow customers to view useful information, personalised to their postcode, such as 

‘planning applications near me’. 

 Provide end-to-end, efficient customer journeys by reviewing and redesigning our processes 

and back-office systems. 

 Continue the roll-out of online forms to help reduce the number of email contacts.   

 Ensure our website is accessible and customers with disabilities are able to use it easily. 

 Ensure web content is up-to-date and accurate. 

 Encourage website feedback via the online feedback form, respond and act on this in line with 

our Customer Charter (see page 11). 

 Help our customers to use online services when visiting our offices, with staff on hand to assist, 

and make sure our online services are promoted and supported by quick guides and online 

video training guides for those customers who need help.  

 Enable staff to communicate with customers whilst out in the community via mobile electronic 

devices, improving our response times and reducing the need for follow-up contacts.  

  
 

 Embrace modern means of communications, integrating social media into our standard 

communication channels and giving it equal weight. 

 Use Social Media to communicate quickly and openly with our customers.  

 Gain customer feedback about the Council through social media, so issues being discussed in 

the community are understood and acted upon as quickly as possible.  

 
 

 Replace incoming email by expanding the use of electronic forms and processes. 

These are available 24/7 and integrate directly into Council systems.  

 

 

Online 

Contact Us online form/Email 

Social 

Page 19



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 10  

 

 

 

 

 

 Have one contact number and reduce direct dialling allowing customers to be helped 

in a clear, simple and timely way whilst providing the best value for money 

 Strive to resolve issues at the first point of contact, so fewer calls need to be passed 

through to services for a response 

 Sensible use of automation to better direct customers to online services and a single 

point of resolution 

 Answer the phone promptly but not at the expense of other channels (telephone 

contact will be given equal importance, but not preference over other contact 

methods) 

 

 

 

 Focus face-to-face on those who need it most, while making sure that it remains 

available to anyone who prefers to contact us in this way 

 Help customers get online by using face-to-face as a stepping stone 

 Help our customers to use online services when visiting our offices, or those of our 

partners such as the libraries 

 Make sure our online services are promoted and supported by ‘how to’ guides and 

online video training guides for those customers who need help 

 

 

 Post is the least efficient and most time-consuming means of communicating with our 

customers so wherever possible, alternative communication channels will be adopted 

 We commit to reducing printing and postage wherever we can, as this represents a 

significant cost to the Council and is damaging to the environment.  

 Where customers do choose to write to the Council it will be responded to in a timely 

way, but using alternative cheaper channels where possible.    

 

 

 

 

By Telephone 

Post 

In Person (Face-to-Face) 

Post 

Page 20



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 11  

 

Page 21



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 12  

 

 

  

OUR VISION FOR A DIGITAL COUNCIL 

CUSTOMER ACCESS 

STRATEGY  

2019 – 2022 

 

Appendices 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 13  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Theme 1 Digital Place – The community perspective 

 
We will continue to engage with stakeholders, partners, 
suppliers and investors across the district, the county and 
beyond in the maintenance, development and design of 
our communications infrastructure. We will be supportive 
of applications by telecommunications companies which 
will result in improved digital connectivity in our area. We 
will also call on partners to ensure that the broadband 
needs of our region are met.  
Opportunity – a connected place which offers better 

Broadband availability and free internet access in key 
locations (eg: libraries and council offices) to reduce digital 
exclusion, building skills and confidence 
 
Opportunity – enabling collaboration 

 
Outcome – this theme will support the Council in: 

 Enhancing the lives of customers 

 Enabling a “smart place” 

 Providing income opportunities 

 Facilitating the delivery of community 
priorities 

 

Theme 2 - Digital Customer - The customer 

perspective: 

 
Enabled by the digital services and information they need, 
online and via a ‘channel of choice’. Facilitating an “end to 
end” service delivery in a user-friendly way, similar to that 
seen in much of the private sector. This is in response to 
more and more digital customers that are internet savvy 
and mobile connected – ‘how does a digital service enable 
me?’  
 
For example: to consume digital services, communicate 
digitally, shape personal services effectively, available 
(24/7) with privacy respected. 
 
Opportunity – efficient customer journeys  

Improved efficient Customer journeys will enable residents 
and businesses to interact with the Council digitally for 
better and quicker outcomes 
 
Outcome – this theme will support the Council in: 

 Enabling customers to access end-to-end 
services 

 

Theme 3 Digital Council - The staff perspective 

 
The workforce will have sufficient training and skills to use 
the digital tools required; to deliver services effectively and 
efficiently – delivering positive outcomes for customers by 
giving our workforce access to the business data and 
solutions they need, enabled by the most appropriate 
available technology and ensuring they have the skills and 
proficiency to use them effectively. We will bring together 
all content onto a single digital platform - supporting 
channel shift to self-service for our workforce and 
reinforced through the provision of intuitive transactions, 
which will include the need for “access for all” - including 
non-networked employees. 
 
Opportunity – smarter working 

Smart working will create a 21st century workforce that is 
focused on delivering outcomes with bureaucracy 
minimised through automation 
 
Outcome – this theme will support the Council in: 

 Enhancing the Council's efficiency 

 

 

 

Theme 4 Digital Foundation - A resilient and reliable 

Infrastructure 

 
A secure and robust digital and ICT foundation will 
enhance the efficiency and responsiveness of the 
Council’s operations, supported by a highly skilled ICT 
workforce that will take advantage of the latest and 
emerging technologies and opportunities as they arise. 
We will take a whole Council approach when 
implementing our infrastructure, which will include core 
‘Enterprise’ components such as: information, email, voice 
and data networks, hosting and client devices. We will 
pursue sustainable and environmentally responsible 
choices in procurement, pursuing green options and more 
efficient use of resources to reduce energy usage. 
 
The provision of such a level of capability requires a solid 
and dependable service that will be maintained and 
invested in on a regular basis, as necessary. It will also 
have ‘appropriate’ level of resilience, measured against 
risk and driven by updated policies; the service will be 
scalable, delivering capacity to reflect organisation 
demand and changes balancing the need in delivering 
‘value for money’ for our customers. 
 
Opportunity - digitally capable 

The Council can build future capability to deliver 
technology services through a broader range of 
partnerships including suppliers and other public bodies, 
e.g. councils partnering with universities, operating digital 
and/or ICT apprenticeships 
 
Outcome – this theme will support the Council in: 

 

 Delivering the Corporate Plan 

 Delivering the Council transformation 

 Delivering themes 1-3 

Appendix 1 - Our Digital Themes 2019 -2022 

Page 23



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 14  

 
Appendix 2 - Our Digital Principles  
We have developed a set of Digital Design Principles, which align with the Government Digital 

Service (GDS) best practice to inform the delivery of this strategy. All services and their staff 

are signed up to these principles. (Remove from public version) 
 

To improve our customers' experience and reduce service delivery costs, you should understand and adopt these 

principles: 

 promote the principles with all your colleagues 

 check your services against the principles 

 implement the principles 

 contact our Web Team if you need new online forms – the Web Team can create these 

Where a service is already available online: 

 give it prominence in all Council communications 

 remove other channels (except main Council telephone number) from all communications to direct as 

many customer enquiries as possible to the online channel: 

o do not publish direct phone numbers 

o do not publish email addresses – use online forms that capture structured data 

o do not ask for letters or other papers to be sent to the Council – if forms need to be completed, 

use online forms 

o do not ask for payment by cheque – it's the least efficient way of taking a payment 

 if an online form delivers an email that has to be processed manually, consider whether automation would 

deliver savings – the form could be entered into a system automatically to save time and effort 

Where a service is not yet available online: 

 publish all information about the service on the website, adhering to our style and content guides – do not 

say 'contact us for more information' as all information should be online 

 consider whether an online form could be created to capture initial contact details 

 if an online form is not appropriate: 

o publish only the central phone number 

o do not publish an email address 

Where a new service is being considered: 

 design the service to be delivered online from the outset – 'Digital by Default' 

 avoid the use of any other channels if possible – make it online-only, as: 

o Those who don't have their own access to technology can get online using public access PCs in 

our offices, or their local library 

o Those who don't know how to use technology can get help and support from our staff (by 

telephoning us or visiting us in person) or through support from friends, family, or neighbours. 

For all services, ask the following questions: 

 Is the service available online? If not, why not? 

 Are cheque payments involved in the process? If so, put a plan in place to discourage them. 

 Is any paper involved in the process? If so, put a plan in place to remove all paper. 

 Is an email address published? If so, put a plan in place to replace it with an online form. 

 Is your technology integrated so the customer can automatically be notified of updates and outcomes, to 

avoid the likelihood of follow-up contacts? If not, assess the benefits of doing so and, where appropriate, 

submit a bid for funding to integrate it. 

Page 24



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 15  

 

Appendix 3 – Digital inclusion strategy 

 

Risk of Digital Exclusion 

 South Holland District Council recognises that despite the ever-increasing adaption of 

Digital there is still a risk of Digital Exclusion for a percentage of its residents 

 The latest Digital Exclusion heat map below, developed by the Local Government 

Association, the LSE (London School of Economics) and Lloyds Banking Group, shows that 

the overall likelihood of digital exclusion in South Holland is HIGH, with 25% of its population 

not having the five basic digital skills. The heat map uses eight different digital and social 

metrics to calculate the overall likelihood of exclusion. 

 

 Without action there is a danger that residents of South Holland will get left behind and not 

be able to perform simple digital tasks both locally and nationally. For example Universal 

Credit, which is being rolled out across the district requires applicants to have an email 

address and make all claims via online means 

 

 Whilst avoiding stereotyping, the sections of the community most at risk are likely to be: 

o Job seekers, including those claiming Universal Credit  

o Low income families, including those with young children  

o Older people (socially isolated people)  

o People with disabilities 
 

 

Page 25



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 16  

 

Resolution 

 

 We are working with key partners such as Lincolnshire County Council, the Libraries and the 

Department of Work and Pensions to provide facilities where residents can access online 

services and receive help from trained staff on how to use this equipment 

 The Council is committed to championing the need for better broadband across the 

district  

 Either directly or through third parties such as Age Concern, we will help to provide and/or 

promote ‘Silver Surfer’ get online courses for older residents 

 We will compile and promote Wi-Fi locations and details of free-to-use broadband and 

digital access across our district, supporting residents to access our services 

 Our offices in Spalding are being turned into self-service hubs where residents will be 

supported by our staff to self-serve, where possible, while also getting the help they need 

for more complex enquiries. 

 All new digital services are being built with self and assisted service given top priority, 

allowing residents to seek assistance at any point when using them. This allows customer 

service staff to either fully or partially complete processes on behalf of residents using 

exactly the same online form as self-serving customers, thereby streamlining our processes 

whilst helping residents get online 

 We recognise that despite the increase in – and improvement to – our digital services, 

there will always be residents unable or unwilling to use them. As a result, we continue our 

commitment to providing telephone support, as well as face-to-face support. However, as 

more people go online and self-serve, telephone resource will be freed up to spend 

additional time with those residents that need it most. 

 

Page 26



 

 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY | 2019 - 2022                                                          
P a g e | 17  

 

 

 

Appendix 3 - Preferred Methods of Payment 

 
 

 

1. Direct Debit 
(for Council Tax & 

Business Rates)

2. Online 
payment via 

website

3. Allpay 3. Post Office

4. Automated 
Telephone

5. Telephone via 
Contact Centre

6. Cheque

7. Face to Face

Preferred Methods of Payment  

 

 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 m
e
th

o
d

 o
f 

p
a
y
m

e
n

t 

L
e
a

s
t 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 m
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 

The diagram 

to the right 

demonstrates 

the Council’s 

preferred 

methods of 

payment. By 

using the 

preferred 

methods of 

payment you 

will be 

helping the 

Council be 

more efficient 

and help to 

reduce costs. 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Digital Ambition – Member Engagement Sessions FAQs 

(14-16 January 2019) 

 

The following FAQs have been put together to summarise the key questions and comments made by members at a series of engagement sessions, 

designed to give members more detail about the Council’s draft digital and ICT strategy and customer access strategies. If you have any further questions, 

however, please email Andy Prior, Digital and Customer Access Manager, at: andy.prior@breckland-sholland.gov.uk  

Category Question Answer 

Resident Experience There are many residents who are not able – 
or have no wish – to contact the Council 
online. How are they going to be catered for?  

It is recognised that some 25% of residents may fall into this category. All existing means of 
contact – known as ‘channels’ – will remain open so residents will still be able to make 
contact via a landline or a mobile phone.  
 
For those with a mobile phone, progress updates can be received by text messages.  
 
Residents who don’t have a mobile phone can opt to provide a mobile number of a relative 
or friend with a mobile phone as an alternate point of contact for text messages.  
 

Will the Housing system be capable of 
accepting online payments from both end 
users and agents (e.g. for ‘bulk’ 
transactions)?  
 

All online payment transactions will be accepted by the system. 
 
Payer information will be captured in order to provide tracking and reporting. 
 

Why do residents need to log on to create a 
‘My Account’ account? 

Residents can make use of the system without logging on. However if a resident chooses 
to sign up for ‘My Account’, the system will then identify that resident via the login details 
and retrieve all relevant information held. 
 
That might include previous communications relating to a fly-tip or other issues that the 
resident has raised with the Council. This will allow faster and more efficient transactions 
to take place. 
 
(For residents who have created their own account, the Council’s customer services staff 
will only have access to limited elements of that data, such as contact details. Similarly 
Members will only be able to see a limited amount of information about a resident).  
 

P
age 29

mailto:andy.prior@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


Going forward, the residents’ sign up process will be simplified to capture everything 
except a password as part of the transaction. 
 

Can you please make sure that all pieces of 
information about a property or a resident 
are held in one place, and that systems can 
communicate with one another?  
 

Our systems will be linked in such a way that all data relating to a particular property, or to 
a specific resident, are pulled together into one place.  

Will a tenant or a Member be able to self-
serve in order to pull up information about a 
property? 
 

Our systems will support a range of different ‘views’ of the information that is held.  
For example we will create a view of property details for a tenant, and a different view for 
Members.  
 
In this way, the same overall set of data is presented differently for different types of user. 
This will also help to provide Members with the information they will need, e.g. when they 
are asked to assist by a vulnerable resident.  
 
(We will of course ensure that any sensitive personal data is visible only to the resident 
themselves.)  
 

Many of our residents do not have English as 
their first language – how are they going to 
access these new systems?  

This issue is understood and the Council acknowledges that residents for whom English is 
not their first language may need additional help. 
 
Using the online systems, in conjunction with Google Translate, to make contact with the 
Council is a good option for this group as it does not necessitate speaking in English. 
 
The Council has translation services already available in the customer contact centre too, 
and we also recognise that any email or letter-based communications need take account 
of the needs of this group.  
 

How will we inform residents about these 
new systems?  
 

Firstly we’ll make sure that members and officers are able to look at any communications 
before they get sent out to residents. That way we can be sure that we are communicating 
in a clear and precise way.  
 
We’ll use a range of different media for communicating these messages, including social 
media and email, while also considering more traditional methods of communication for 
those harder-to-reach customer groups, such as those without internet access.  
 

P
age 30



Can Members have access to more general 
information such as the Schedule of Works? 

The Council will work towards making the Schedule of Works available online, along with 
other information such as intelligence about properties. 
 

Can reminders be sent out to residents with 
work scheduled? 

Sending this sort of reminder is one of the clear benefits that the new system will provide.  
Reminders will be sent by text message.  
 
As we examine and improve each of our processes we’ll ensure that we take every 
opportunity to build in automated feedback for residents wherever it’s possible.  
 

Will Members be able to look at the system 
during its development and make comments 
or suggestions?  

Yes – the system will be developed on a step-by-step basis (using a methodology called 
‘Agile’) and this will allow Members to look at parts of the systems as they are created and 
make comments. 
 

The voice menu system that residents 
encounter when they call in to the customer 
contact centre is not easy to navigate and has 
too many levels. 
 

We will review the setup of the voice menu system with a view to simplifying it and making 
it less complicated for residents to use, we will also look to reduce the time taken from 
dialling to being placed in the appropriate call queue.   
 

Compatibility & 
Connectivity 

Will the new functions that are being built be 
compatible with other SHDC systems?   

All digital and IT developments are committed to using ‘open’ platforms and interfaces. 
This enables connectivity to other internal systems. Our main web platform, GOSS, sits at 
the heart of all our systems and has access to data across a wide range of service area 
systems.  
 

Broadband improvements – Members 
pointed out that monies spent by SHDC with 
Lincolnshire CC have seen very few positive 
results  

It is acknowledged that despite the large expenditure there remain a number of spots with 
poor broadband coverage in the district. We recognise the seriousness of this situation and 
it is a high priority item within the Commercialisation Directorate.  
 
Even where fast broadband is available, it may not be affordable to some residents, so as 
part of the Council’s draft Customer Access Strategy, we will be working with partners to 
promote any Wi-Fi/internet access that is freely and publicly available. 
 

How flexible is this system?  The system is built to be highly flexible. We will be able to re-use developments and apply 
them to other service areas. 
 

Are iPad models compatible with Office 
365*? 

Yes absolutely; as Office 365 is a cloud-based solution it’s compatible with many different 
types of device including iPads.  
 

P
age 31



* Please note: Following a formal project initiation meeting in January, the roll-out of the 
first phase of Microsoft Office 365 to both members and officers is scheduled for early 
September 2019. This date takes account of the availability of ICT staff and of our delivery 
partner, as well as technical pre-requisites that are necessary in order to ensure 
compliance with national cyber security guidelines. 
 

Service Implications  Will services be improved ‘across the board’ 
and not just at the system level?  

Processes within the service areas will be looked at right through from end-to-end, and we 
will look to provide improvements to all elements. 
 
Resources freed up by the digital transformation can be applied elsewhere, including at 
the point of consumption. 
 

Will we need more customer services staff to 
deliver the strategy’s aims? 

No – in fact there will be opportunities to allocate customer services staff to enhanced 
services & assisted services. We’ll be able to do this in part by reducing “hand-offs” (where 
enquiries are passed through to other departments) and being able to deal directly with 
more complex cases.    
 

Links Will there be any benefit from this program 
to ELDC or BDC? 

All resources engaged in this initiative will be working on solutions for and on behalf of 
SHDC. It may be that some spin-offs could arise for other parties but the resources are 
100% dedicated to SHDC. 
 

Has BDC been involved in this initiative 
and/or its costings? 

No - this is purely an SHDC initiative that will be delivered by SHDC and CPBS resources. 
 

Are ELDC following a similar strategy? SHDC and ELDC are at different points in their digital transformation journey. There are 
some common approaches however, as SHDC and ELDC use some of the same platforms 
such as GOSS. 
 

Will the savings already committed in the 
CPBS transformation plan be impacted? 

No - as stated those savings stated are based on 37% of the overall savings from the CPBS 
transformation plan. There will be no negative impact to these figures from this initiative. 
If anything, the Council’s proposed digital work programme will support CPBS to make its 
savings (the more efficient the Council’s processes are, the more likely the Customer 
Contact Centre are to achieve its channel shift targets).  
 

This work must not jeopardise our 
relationship with CPBS. 

As stated, this initiative will be delivered as a partnership between SHDC and CPBS. CPBS 
has been actively involved in all of the planning and preparation behind this initiative. 
 

Does the Contact Centre figure of £123k 
include ELDC? 

All figures that show indicative cost savings relate specifically to SHDC, including the £123k 
cost saving indicated for the Contact Centre.  

P
age 32



 

Does any of this investment relate to BDC? No – as stated this is purely an SHDC initiative. Breckland has its own, entirely separate, 
programme. 
 

Fly-tipping  How does the fly-tip functionality work with 
the Bartec system?  

The Bartec & GOSS systems are already connected, allowing information to be passed 
between them.  

Where will reports about fly-tipping come 
from? 

All information is held centrally within GOSS, and reports will be generated from there. 
 

How do updates get passed back to 
customers? 

Via text messages to mobile devices, or via email or by residents viewing updates online. 
The information will also be available to view in the residents ‘My Account’ where they 
have one. 
 

Why isn’t the fly-tipping functionality 
delivered via an app? 

The creation of an app would not reduce the required steps that the user has to take so no 
additional benefit would be delivered.  Mobile technology has improved significantly to a 
point where very little can be done via an app that cannot be done directly on a mobile 
phone. An app would require significant investments and maintenance for very little gain.   
 

Can residents see current information about 
ALL fly-tips? 

Technically this is feasible, but we’d need to consider just how public we’d want to be 
about that sizeable amount of data, as well as being sensitive about possible issues with 
regard to personal data. As a minimum we will display a map of current reported fly-tips to 
prevent duplicate reporting. 
 

What happens if a resident reports a fly-tip 
that falls outside of the district’s boundaries? 
(the same postcode can cover up to 3 
different districts) 

The GIS (Geographical Information System) mapping of fly-tip reports means that out-of-
district reports cannot occur. Some specific training may be needed in the contact centre 
to ensure a consistent approach to reports made over the phone.  
 

Will there be any mechanism to allow fly-tip 
reports to be flagged to the local council 
Member?  

We will look into the best way of providing that information, for instance we could list a 
breakdown of fly-tips by ward on the Members’ extranet. There may be other alternatives 
too.  
 

Is there a quick way for a Member to report a 
fly-tip 

We will explore the possibility of pre-loading a shortcut onto Members’ devices and 
prepopulating the contact and address details (via My Account), making reporting a fly-tip 
for members a one-click exercise. 
 

Who can see who has reported the fly-tip? Currently only the service area sees the fly-tip report. As mentioned however we will look 
at ways in which Members could be alerted to any fly-tips reported within their ward.  
 

P
age 33



It must be easy to report over the phone too. Contact via phone into the Customer Contact centre is, of course, a channel for reporting. 
By adopting ‘Assisted Service’ the Customer Contact centre will use the same form that a 
resident would see, making it simple to take information from the caller.  
 

Costs and Benefits  Is there a business plan & ROI for this? Figures for costs, and for indicative savings in a sample of service areas, have been 
provided. Once the necessary digital resource is in place, each project will have a fully-
developed business case/mandate, outlining cashable and non-cashable benefits. 

Where does the £76k saving figure for 
housing come from? 

This figure relates to a specific component of the housing service: the management of rent 
accounts. The figure comes from calculating the reduction of officer time that will be 
required once the process is digitised and the associated time saving. That time saving is 
then ‘translated’ into a cost saving figure based on known hourly rates. This will increase 
Officer time which could be reinvested in supporting those customers in more challenging 
circumstances.   
 

Contact centre – where do savings figures 
come from? 

The CPBS transformation plan contains the details of these savings figures. At a high level 
the savings are derived from time saved on all types of existing transactions (telephone, 
email and face-to-face) by moving some transactions to the digital platform. Volumes of 
non-digital transactions are projected to decline significantly.  
 

Project manager – is that a shared cost with 
BDC? 
 

No – this is funded solely by SHDC. 

If marketable products come out of this 
initiative will SHDC have the intellectual 
property rights to be able to sell them? 
 

Value from any developments that can be proven to have a broad use outside of SHDC can 
be ‘banked’ by GOSS who will then create ‘payment’ by way of credits that SHDC can call 
off when required.  
 

This program costs lots of money – where’s 
the business case? 

The £330k cost is for the full 2-year duration of the program. Many levels of Member 
approval are still needed and officers will provide further details around costs and savings 
ahead of those decisions. Projected savings will of course continue year-on-year, beyond 
the 2-year period of the initiative itself. 
 

Can you confirm that the funding being 
sought is available? 
 

Yes – all funding is identified & available.  

Is 2 developers for 2 years at almost £40k the 
level of investment necessary? 
 

Yes – this figure reflects the costs of the sort of skilled technical resources we need.  
 

P
age 34



3rd party providers can sometimes be 
cheaper - is there scope for us to tap into the 
market. 

The integration work that is needed across all of our service areas is highly specialised. 
Whilst some of the web design work could potentially be provided this way, it is the 
integration that is critical and that work needs to be done by staff who have deep 
familiarity with the SHDC service areas and organisation as well as the Goss system. 
 

 

 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Customer Access Strategy & Digital  / ICT 
Strategy

P
age 37



Agenda
• What we want to achieve

• Why we want to do this

• Infrastructure

• Progress

• Our residents
– What they are telling us

– Assisted service

• Proposals
– Customer Access Strategy

– Digital & ICT Strategy

• Benefits

• Risks

• Budget

• Governance

• Questions

P
age 38



What we want to achieve – our digital ambition

• More digital options,  full end-to-end 
digital processes – not just forms that 
result in emails

• 24 / 7 access

• Speed up communication processes

• Reduce repeat avoidable contacts 

• Allow residents to contact the Council in 
the way that best suits them

• Free up resource to spend time with those 
that need the most help

P
age 39



An example of what we want to achieve

Improve ‘report a Fly tip’ process to:

1. Improve the user experience

2. Speed up the process

3. Make it more efficient

P
age 40



Improving contact channels

• Adding to current offer – enhancing ways 

to contact council, not removing any

• All current channels to remain, inc. phone 

and face to face 

• Key aspiration: 50% of contacts via digital 

means by 2022

• This still leaves over 50,000 phone calls 

to the Contact Centre per year

P
age 41



Why do we want to do this?

• Increased customer satisfaction for those 
that want to be more digital and agile 

• Provide a more customer focused service

• Allow us to spend more time with the 
people who need personalised help

• Responding to customer expectations

• Provide a more cost effective service

P
age 42



We are IT ready

• High performance, high availability IT Platforms

• Platforms support and underpin the digital 
transformation

• Platforms support agile working strategy

• Hardware refresh programs ongoing for officers 
and members

• Pre-work for Office 365 deployment has 
commenced

P
age 43



Progress

• Most planning processes are paperless

• Garden waste – 71% of applications came from 
online

• Reception
– More ways to pay

– Self Service PC’s 

• Appointments for benefits 

• Payment kiosks

P
age 44



SHDC - Customer Profile

P
age 45



What percentage of our residents want this?

Garden Waste 
sign-up 
achieved 71% 
via digital 
channel

Where we have digitalised it’s the preferred way to engage 

Over 50% of 
South Holland 
Centre tickets 
now purchased 
online 

New digital services at other councils show over 60%

P
age 46



What percentage of our residents want this?

Changing demands and expectations of residents 

Out of work hours Out of work hours

9am

5pm

P
age 47



South Holland’s Acorn Profile

P
age 48



Assisted / Mediated Service

For when customers need extra help

Agent performs tasks 

on behalf of customer

Customer receives 

update notifications

Michelle  verifies the 

customer

Customer can see both 

self-service and 

assisted-service tasks in 

a single view

P
age 49



Help residents to get online
• Providing assisted service to those that need it, via:

– Telephone support from the Council’s Contact Centre

– Self-service hub at Priory Road, where residents can also self-
serve, or get extra help to deal with more complex enquiries.

• Working with key partners, like Age Concern/LCC to signpost 
residents to digital skills training to help them build confidence 
and knowledge 

• Working closely with CAB, who will be providing Universal 
Credit support from 2019

• Championing the need for better broadband across the district 

• Compiling and promoting Wi-Fi locations and details of free-to-
use broadband and digital access across our district, 
supporting residents to access our services

P
age 50



Tenant Portal 
(Housing)

Council House Repairs

Mutual Exchange

Account Balance

Pet Permission

Knowledge base

Give Notice

Tenant Portal – Allowing automation of many manual  housing 
processes

P
age 51



ProposalsP
age 52



Customer Access Strategy – What is it?

P
age 53



Customer Access Strategy – What is it for?

• Explains to our residents the high level of customer 
service we will provide

• Explains to residents what the Council’s ambitions are
• Demonstrates that SHDC is a forward looking Council
• Recognises the increased use of digital and shows how 

this will be used to improve the efficiency of the Council
• Explains that the increased use of digital for those 

residents who want to use it will allow a greater focus to 
be placed on those that need the most help

• Stresses that ALL residents will be provided for
• Takes into account relationship with East Lindsey

P
age 54



ICT & Digital Strategy

• Purpose – sets out how we plan to use technology to 
support efficient and cost-effective service delivery, while 
meeting customer needs.

• Service improvement – with a resilient, secure ICT 
infrastructure now in place, we want to build on this – using 
technology to improve the way customers access our 
services, and to our core business processes.

• Intelligent thinking – our aim is for technology to help 
services access, process and analyse customer data from a 
single source – the more we know about our customers, the 
more relevant and efficient we can be.

• Digital work programme – Costing £330k, this will enable 
us to increase the scope and pace of this digital 
improvement work.   

P
age 55



Examples of Benefits – Cost Avoidance

Contact Centre

• Telephony -
• E Mails
• Face to Face -

£123k

Housing

• Rent Account 
Administration 
Costs – £76K

Taxi Licensing

• Taxi Licensing -
£7.6k

P
age 56



P.E.S.T. risk assessment
Risk of proceeding Solution Risk of not proceeding Solution

Political
Residents resistance to change Delivering tangible improvements and benefits Residents and businesses viewing the Council as 

not being pro-active and not embracing 
opportunities.

Continued launch of new digital services that 
match resident’s experience in other sectors.

Reputational damage to Council being considered
as not forward thinking

Using digital to allow residents connect with 
others – which enhances the Council’s 
reputation with the community and beyond.

Economic

Significant investment won’t yield 
sufficient return

Robust analysis of opportunities, potential benefits, 
customer experience and experience across other 
authorities. Each project subject to business case 
and scrutiny.

Front line services cut due to budget cuts Cost saving from digital programme allowing 
services to be maintained and commercial 
opportunities developed.

Social
Risk of Digital Exclusion Existing and alternative channels (with assisted 

service) are built into Digital Inclusion strategy.
District being isolated Adoption of digital where appropriate 

Lack of engagements by residents Systems so easy to use that residents will want to Residents being isolated Adoption of digital where appropriate

Lack of engagement by services Launch of staff engagement strategy

Technological
Failure to deliver programme ICT infrastructure already in place. Dedicated 

programme / project management- Governance of 
Digital board

Council getting left behind - not being able to 
catch up

Continued programme of improvements 

P
age 57



Funding Requested

• 1 project manager 18 months £54,975

• 2 web developers  - 2 years £176,724

– 1 Content manager

– 1 Developer

• Up to 200 Days contract resource UX / 

Design £40,414

• One off costs to deliver £59,500

Total Cost of project over 2 years: £331,613

P
age 58



Governance

• Funded from the existing investment 
and growth reserve

• Each work stream needs signed off full 
business case approved by Digital / 
ICT / Customer board

• Reporting into EMT 

P
age 59



A final example of what we want to 
achieve

P
age 60



Discussion - Questions

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Cllr Malcolm Chandler, Portfolio holder for Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation
Maxine O’Mahony, Executive Director - Strategy and Governance (Monitoring 
Officer)

To: Joint Performance Monitoring Panel & Policy Development Panel – 12 
February 2019

Author: Sarah Barsby, Shared Executive Manager Information

Subject ICT & Digital Strategy and Digital Work Programme 2019-2022 and Digital 
Work Programme

Purpose: To inform the Panel of a new strategy which aims to improve residents’ 
experience of contacting South Holland District Council while also increasing 
the efficiency of our overall operating arrangements

Recommendation: 

1) That the contents of the report, together with the attached draft ICT and Digital Strategy and 
Digital Work Programme, be noted and comments and feedback provided.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 At a November meeting of the joint Performance Monitoring Panel (PMP) and Policy 
Development Panel (PDP), Members raised a number of questions and/or concerns 
relating to the draft Digital & ICT Strategy and associated Digital Work Programme, and the 
draft Customer Access Strategy. 

With specific regard to the ICT and Digital Strategy (see Appendix A), further information 
and reassurance was sought on:

 The involvement of CPBS, as the Council’s service delivery partner, in the strategy’s 
development (addressed in sections 3.5 and 6.3.2 of this report)

 Consultation with East Lindsey District Council, as a shared client of CPBS, on the 
strategy’s content (addressed in section 3.5 of this report)

 The business case for the Digital Work Programme, including:
o Costs and budget (addressed in section 6.3 of this report)
o Benefits (addressed in section 9 of this report)
o Return on Investment (addressed in section 6.4 and Appendix C of this report)
o Risk analysis (addressed in Appendix D of this report)

1.2 In response to this feedback, a series of Member engagement sessions were held from 14-
16 January, aimed to provide further detail and reassurance on the Council’s digital 
ambition, which is underpinned by both its draft Customer Access Strategy and draft Digital 
and ICT strategy.

Page 63

Agenda Item 5.



1.3 The Member engagement sessions were introduced by Cllr Malcolm Chandler and Cllr 
Tracey Carter and were attended by 26 Members out of a potential 37. Notes were taken at 
each event, with comments and questions grouped together and paraphrased to develop a 
set of FAQs (Frequently Asked Questions) which have since been shared with all 
Members, including those unable to attend. FAQs are available to view in Appendix E of 
this report, with engagement session slides contained in Appendix F.

1.4 In addition to the FAQs in Appendix E, the content of this report has also been reviewed to 
address the feedback outlined in section 1.1.

2.0 SUMMARY

2.1 The ICT and Digital Strategy (Appendix A) has been designed to support the wider aims of 
the South Holland Corporate Plan and its priorities. In particular, it makes a key contribution 
towards helping the Council to ‘provide the right services, at the right time and in the right 
way’.

2.2 It builds on the work already undertaken as part of the ICT Programme, launched in 2017 
following a Council decision in 2016 to invest in:

- Creating a new ICT infrastructure to deliver improvements to its ICT services
- Enhancing security and disaster recovery
- Putting foundations in place for staff mobile working and improved information 

sharing

With most projects now complete, the ICT Programme has helped the Council build a 
secure and resilient foundation in preparation for the digital improvements it wants to make 
to not only the way customers access services but how those services are designed and 
provided – to be more responsive, efficient and cost-effective.

2.3 The Council recognises the potential of digital technology to transform the district and lives 
of residents while generating long-term savings. However, to maximise the benefits that 
digital technology can bring, the Council wants to increase the scope, and in some areas, 
the pace, of this work.

3.0 STRATEGY

3.1 The strategy outlines the approach that the Council will take to develop and roll out digital 
technologies that support efficient and cost-effective service delivery, ensuring those 
solutions work for our customers.

3.2 Setting out the next steps to achieving digital improvements as part of a three-year vision 
for the Council, the strategy works towards implementation of an integrated ICT platform, 
allowing every service to access, process and analyse data from a single source – helping 
to drive service improvement and delivery.

3.3 It focuses on technology as an ‘enabler’ for the strategic transformation of the Council’s 
core business processes, redesigning services and enabling access to them in the most 
cost-effective way, with the aim of giving customers choice and meeting their needs within 
the resources the Council has available.

Page 64



3.4 The strategy will be underpinned by a Digital Work Programme (Appendix B) and an ICT 
Work Programme which will be brought forward in 2019/20, forming part of the Council’s 
Service Level Agreement with CPBS (ICT Service).

3.5 Strategy development
The draft strategy has been developed in consultation with senior officers, and the portfolio 
holder for Strategy, Governance and Transformation. In addition, it has been shared with 
CPBS, as the Council’s delivery partner for Customer Services. CPBS has confirmed it is 
supportive of the strategy’s intent and that its current operating model is capable of meeting 
the strategy’s requirements.

3.6 Strategy vision
The strategy’s vision is to provide high quality, easy-to-use services that are designed with 
customers in mind, delivered efficiently with improved value for money. 

By encouraging customers to self-serve, wherever possible and practical, the Council can 
focus its more intensive contact channels, like face-to-face, on those who need the most 
help and support to access services.

3.7 Strategy ambitions
Underpinning the strategy is a set of high-level aims which will help shape the way we:

 Improve digital opportunities for customers to help them access a better experience of 
Council services, and beyond

 Give staff and Members the right digital tools and training to work ‘smarter’
 Minimise internal costs of services and ICT systems
 Generate revenue by:

o Making it easier and more convenient to pay online
o Using digital marketing to promote our traded services

3.8 Strategy themes
The ICT and Digital Strategy proposes to focus on – and group – future activity and projects 
around four key themes:

 Digital Foundation – Much of the ICT Programme work, so far
 Digital Customer – Where the Digital Team has been focusing its efforts, to date 

(Eg: website, online forms, book and pay, etc.)
 Digital Council – Giving staff and members the technology and tools they need to be 

effective/productive
 Digital Place (our wider district) – A longer-term ambition to digitise the district (Eg: 

better broadband, etc.)

4.0 STRATEGY PRINCIPLES
The strategy includes a number of key features, including:

4.1 Digital design principles
These align to government best practice standards and have been developed so that all 
council departments and their staff are signed up to working in a consistent way when 
reviewing or redesigning services. 

4.2 Architecture principles

Page 65



The approach the Council will take to the designing, sourcing and deploying of ICT and 
Digital systems will be defined by a number of key architectural principles, covering how the 
Council will:

 Use data to design better services
 Share learning and resources to reduce costs and speed implementation 
 Use cloud hosting of services and data, where appropriate, rather than using 

physical servers
 Procure systems that ‘talk to each other’
 Create a digitally capable workforce through training and development

Above these sits a single guiding principle, however, that the use of ICT and Digital by the 
Council must add value to the customer; whether that be a resident, elected Member, 
business, partner organisation or other service within the Council.

5.0 GOVERNANCE
The successful delivery of this strategy will be dependent on people as much as it will 
technology, and ensuring that all services are working in line with the principles, as set out 
in points 4.1 and 4.2 of this report. 

Reporting to the Council’s ICT and Customer Board, a new ICT and Digital Steering Group 
will be set up to prioritise developments, based on customer demand and savings to the 
back office; and engage with services to provide or improve upon their online service ‘offer’. 

A crucial part of the group’s role will also be to ensure that the relevant support services are 
involved in purchasing (Contracts Team) or developing (ICT and Web teams) new systems, 
processes (Corporate Improvement Team) or ways of working (Learning and Development 
Team).

The ICT and Customer Board will be accountable for the delivery of the Digital Work 
Programme, outlined in section 6 of this report, below. Regular highlights reports will also 
be produced from this for the Executive Management Team.

It is also proposed that delivery of the Digital Work Programme is:
 Evaluated through inclusion in the Council’s audit programme for 2020/21 
 Reported on through status updates in Strategy and Governance Portfolio Briefing 

reports
 Monitored through regular updates to the Council’s Policy Monitoring Panel, on a 

suggested six-monthly basis

6.0 DIGITAL WORK PROGRAMME

6.1 The delivery of this strategy and its associated Digital Work Programme (Appendix B) is 
closely linked to the Customer Access Strategy 2019-2022.

6.2 The Digital Work Programme underpins both strategies by identifying corporate priority 
projects for digital service transformation and improvement, including:

 Customer Services (CPBS-led: enabling the re-engineering of all key service 
request processes, and the roll-out of self/assisted-service by replacing and 
improving CPBS’s Customer Relationship Management system (shared with East 

Page 66



Lindsey District Council). This will encourage a higher take-up of online services 
while reducing officer processing time.

 ‘Report It’ process re-engineering: Re-working all online ‘report it’ processes (Eg; 
fly-tipping, missed refuse bag collections, etc), to improve customer experience and 
take-up of digital services, as well as reducing officer processing time.

 Housing: Integrate new Housing system (including Council House repairs) into 
Council’s web platform by the creation of a tenants’ housing hub. This will enable 
customers to self-serve, saving administrative time which officers can spend instead 
on supporting more complex enquiries or issues.

 Economic Development: creating an improved online business portal to improve 
support and advice to small and new businesses. This will help to promote the 
district as a place where businesses are encouraged and supported to locate and 
expand.

 Revenues and benefits (CPBS-led): Automating as many revenues and benefits 
processes as possible, to allow greater levels of assisted and self-service, 
improving customer experience and freeing up officer and saving officer processing 
time.

 Licensing: Integrate new licensing software into Council’s web platform. This will 
enable residents to self-serve and save administration time which officers can 
spend on supporting more complex enquiries or issues. This will be delivered with a 
consistent ‘look and feel’ to match other online Council services.

 EHT&C Website: Provide a new more commercially-focused ‘look and feel’ to the 
EHT&C website to encourage more online visitors and course bookings.

6.3 Resource requirements

6.3.1 The total cost to the Council of delivering the Digital Work Programme is estimated at 
£331k. 

A high-level breakdown of the overall figure of £331k is provided in the table shown below. 

 
Role Term Cost across full term
Project Manager 18 months £54,975
Web Content Manager 2 years £88,362
Web Developer 2 years £88,362
UX / Design resource 2 years £40,414
One-off costs to deliver £59,500

This comprises staff resource of £231k, consultancy and contract staff of up to £40k, and 
systems and development costs (one-off) of £60k. It does not include the costs of the 
Public Protection or Housing systems which were the subject of separate reports.

Page 67



Following advice from the Finance Team, this report proposes that the resource costs of 
£331k are funded from within the existing investment and growth reserve.

6.3.2 Staff resource
The £231k outlined above for staff resource will be used to employ a dedicated project 
manager who will carry out further analysis to quantify the full cost-efficiencies of the 
planned work to the Council. Prior to any project commencing, a fully-developed business 
case will be developed, outlining cashable and non-cashable benefits.

This funding will also be used to appoint:

 1 web developer (2 year, fixed term – employed by and based within the CPBS web 
team)

 1 web content manager (2 year, fixed term – employed by and based within SHDC)

This is expected to provide the necessary capacity to support delivery of the programme 
within the three-year ICT and Digital strategy timeframe.

6.4 Return on Investment 
Information detailed within Appendix C (attached) describes at a high level the main 
opportunity areas for efficiency savings to be generated as a result of implementing the 
proposed strategy. Three separate processes are analysed in detail and indicative savings 
figures, totalling potential savings of some £206k per annum, are provided. Given that 
many service areas are yet to undergo analysis and digitalisation we would expect that 
figure to increase as the programme is rolled out.

7.0 OPTIONS

7.1 Note the contents of the report, together with the attached draft ICT and Digital Strategy 
and Digital Work Programme, and provide comments and feedback.

7.2 Do nothing.

8.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

8.1 The strategy sets out a clear plan for making best use of Council resources to meet the 
needs of its customers – residents, businesses, staff and elected Members – while 
achieving value for money for the Council.

8.2 Not only does the strategy aim to improve services, it also anticipates a reduction in costs 
over the three-year period, through increased productivity, rationalisation and re-
procurement of systems and software, automation of service processes, and as more 
customers seek to access Council services online.

9.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

9.1 By implementing an integrated ICT platform, the Council will be able to access, process 
and analyse customer data from a single source – helping to drive service improvement 
and efficiency.

9.2 By transforming the Council’s core systems and business processes, Council services and 
staff will be able to operate in a more efficient and cost-effective way

Page 68



9.3 As more customers choose – and expect – to transact with the Council via its website, the 
Council anticipates being able to make significant savings to its operating costs.

9.4 By giving staff and elected Members the right digital tools and training, they will be to work 
‘smarter’ and more productively.

9.5 By making it easier and more convenient to pay online, and by using digital marketing to 
promote our traded services, the Council will be able to maintain or generate revenue

10.0 IMPLICATIONS

10.1 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; 
Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more 
of these headings, these are identified below.

10.2 Corporate Priorities
The strategy supports the Council’s Corporate Plan priority of ‘providing the right service, in 
the right way at the right time’ by providing easy access to information, advice and support 
through multiple access channels, and by ensuring our business processes are as efficient 
and cost-effective as possible.

10.3 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

10.3.1 Residents, businesses and visitors will continue to be able to contact the Council by any of 
the following channels:

 Web
 Telephone
 Post or email
 Face-to-face
 Social media

And the Council will contact them by web chat, telephone, post, email and social media.

10.3.2 Web:
South Holland District Council’s website aims to conform to Level AA of the web content 
accessibility guidelines of the World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) which particularly 
considers protected groups, including people with disabilities.
The Council’s website also features the option of a ‘Recite Me’ toolbar, which makes 
content more accessible with reading and translation support. Text can also be downloaded 
as an MP3 digital audio file.

Residents with hearing or visual impairments can view the website content in extra-large 
font/text to assist people with visual impairments, and sound/audio buttons are designed to 
benefit those with hearing impairments.

The carers (including family and friends) of older frail residents and of children and young 
people will benefit from transacting and finding out about services online. Many carers try to 
balance caring with work and careers and they will be able to access the Council 24:7.

Page 69



10.3.3 Telephone:
While the strategy aims to encourage more residents to contact the Council online, it does 
not reduce or change residents’ access to telephone contact channels to raise queries or 
access services. It aims to improve the current service by reducing customer demand for 
this channel, and therefore will be of benefit to all groups who continue use this as a way of 
contacting the Council. Adoption of the strategy will also enable the opportunity to review 
the existing telephone menu options structure and implement changes, with a view to 
providing a simplified customer experience. 

10.3.4 Face-to-face:
Face-to-face services will be reconfigured to provide greater access to self-serve facilities 
and support to use these. 

Face-to-face appointments will continue to be available to all customers, including those 
who feel they need them (Eg: for more complex enquiries and more vulnerable customers) 
at the Council’s Priory Road office.

10.4 Financial
The strategy also takes account of the increasing financial pressures faced by local 
Government and the need for all councils – including South Holland District Council – to 
ensure they are delivering services as cost-effectively as possible. 

For further financial detail, please see section 6.3.

10.5 Staffing
Please see section 6.3.2.

10.6 Risks
The risk of both proceeding and not proceeding with the Digital Work Programme are 
detailed in Appendix D.

10.7 Constitution/Legal
The ICT and Digital Strategy does not form part of the Council’s policy framework, and is 
consistent with the Council’s Corporate Plan. 

However, the Digital Work Programme contains both direct financial and staffing 
implications. As such, this element is a non-executive decision which falls to the Council to 
determine.

11 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED
All wards are affected by the strategy.

12.0 ACRONYMS

12.1 ICT – Information Communication Technology

12.2 GIS – Geographic Information System

12.3 CRM – Customer Relationship Management

12.4 W3C – World Wide Web Consortium

Page 70



Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Sarah Barsby Shared Executive Manager Information
Telephone Number 07870 157290
Email: Sarah.Barsby@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Digital and ICT Strategy 2019-2022
Appendix B Digital Work Programme – key projects
Appendix C Digital Work Programme – Return on Investment (ROI)
Appendix D Digital Work Programme – risk analysis
Appendix E Digital FAQs
Appendix F Member engagement session presentation slides

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

South Holland DC 
Digital & ICT Strategy 

 

2019 – 2022 
 
 
  

Page 73



 

2 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
1. Executive summary ........................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Purpose .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

3. Background ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

4. Our Digital Agenda ............................................................................................................................ 6 

5. Strategy aims ..................................................................................................................................... 7 

6. Our digital vision ............................................................................................................................. 10 

7. Our Digital themes .......................................................................................................................... 18 

8. Information security and assurance ............................................................................................... 20 

9. Digital work programme ................................................................................................................. 21 

Appendices .............................................................................................................................................. 22 

A. Corporate Plan priorities ................................................................................................................. 22 

B. Moving Forward programme .......................................................................................................... 22 

C. Our Digital objectives ...................................................................................................................... 23 

D. Our Digital Principles ....................................................................................................................... 24 

E. Our Architecture Principles ............................................................................................................. 25 

F. Our Digital Customers ..................................................................................................................... 27 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 74



 

3 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

1. Executive summary 
South Holland District Council has always been a forward-thinking authority, focused on 
delivering great value for money services for our residents while making the most of the huge 
opportunities for economic growth in our district.  
  
The last decade, however, has seen significant changes across Local Government and this is 
likely to continue for the foreseeable future. The shape and size of the Council is likely to 
change but the need to provide high levels of service to our customers – both residents and 
businesses – will remain, set against a backdrop of reduced budgets.  
 
To date, the Council has responded to these challenges by implementing our ‘Moving 
Forward’ programme – helping us to not only balance our budget, but also to change the way 
we deliver services to better respond to customers’ needs, and improve the way we work and 
develop as an organisation.   
 
Since ‘Moving Forward’ was launched in 2015, ICT and Digital have played a key role in 
helping to deliver these objectives. For example, putting in place new options for customers 
to ‘self-serve’ via the Council’s website, which not only makes interacting with the council 
possible on a 24/7 basis, but reduces demand on more expensive channels such as face-to-
face, or telephone support.  
 
Living in a Digital age means demand for public services and expectations of levels of 
service continues to grow. Our residents and businesses expect the same levels of access, 
ease of use and customer service that they see online from large private sector 
organisations, such as Google and Amazon. They expect to be able to access their services at a 
time and in ways that suit them. Our strategy recognises this by making the shift from a 
traditional ICT strategy to a combined ICT and Digital Strategy. 
 
Some of the Council’s services rely on third party providers, such as Compass Point Business 
Services (CPBS) for their delivery. South Holland District Council will also commit to working 
with East Lindsey District Council through CPBS on ICT projects which have been outlined 
within the CPBS Company Transformation Plan, where it is demonstrated further financial 
savings can be delivered. So when redesigning the Council’s processes to be more efficient 
and customer-focused, the whole transaction – from start to finish – needs to be considered. 
We may need our providers to embrace Digital and new ways of working, or work in 
partnership with them to share technology, or information. 
 
Internally, our programme of adopting more modern working practices (People Plan), 
maximising the use of our office space, removing unnecessary bureaucracy and 
administration, and supporting community-based service delivery, will all be underpinned by 
ICT and Digital to help drive efficiencies. 
 
The Digital Age also provides new opportunities for customers to communicate with the 
Council through social media and to shape decision-making through online consultations.  
 

Page 75



 

4 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 
Elected members will require the right tools to engage with their communities, acting as 
ambassadors for Digital and helping to promote access to services and information. 
 
For these reasons, ICT is no longer simply regarded as a support service; it is now a critical 
service, able to transform the way other services are designed and delivered. Without ICT, the 
organisation cannot operate and we are unable to serve our customers. It underpins our 
‘Moving Forward’ change programme, and plays a fundamental role in improving efficiency, 
reducing cost across the Council. 
 
Finally, this strategy highlights the importance of a Digital infrastructure in South Holland 
district – including broadband, electronic services, access and skills. A strong Digital 
infrastructure is a key factor in promoting business growth, regardless of location, and this in 
turn helps to support strong local economies and sustainable communities. 
 
To embrace all these themes, and to place them in a Digital context, the Council will deliver 
four key workstreams: 
 

 Digital Foundation 

 Digital Customer 

 Digital Council 

 Digital Place 

 

 
 

 

 

Cllr Malcolm Chandler 
Executive Member  
Strategy, Governance & Transformation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Maxine O’Mahony 
Executive Director 

Strategy & Governance 

Government Digital Strategy 
The Government’s Digital strategy aims to provide ‘Digital services which are so 
straight-forward and convenient that all those who can use Digital services will choose 
to do so, while those who can’t are not excluded’.  
 
We support this through our Moving Forward change programme objective: ‘To have 

online services so good that people (who can) choose to use them’ 
 
South Holland District Council’s ICT and Digital Strategy sets out how we plan to 
achieve this, providing a framework for the Council’s future service delivery and 
engagement with customers using Digital technologies. 

Page 76



 

5 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 

 
 

2. Purpose 
This strategy outlines the approach that South Holland District Council will take to develop 

and roll out Digital technologies that support service delivery, ensuring that these solutions 

work for our customers. It defines our vision, key themes and overall direction of travel for 

ICT and Digital services, provided to the Council by Compass Point Business Services (CPBS). 

This new approach aims to place ICT and Digital services in line with the broader aspirations 

of the Council. It will ensure that ICT and Digital Services are helping to drive service 

transformation across the Council, improving outcomes for customers and adding value to 

their contact with the Council. 

As the Digital strategy continues to develop and we focus more on ‘what’ we deliver than 

‘how’ we deliver it, then the technology requirements of the Council will increasingly become 

part of ICT Service’s Team Plan. 

 

3. Background 
Digital service delivery is not a new concept. As early as 2000, the Government set out its 

vision for an ‘information age government’ that relied on ‘new delivery channels like the 

Internet’, through its Modernising Government White Paper. Since then, huge technological 

advances have helped turn private companies such as Amazon, Google, Apple and Twitter 

into worldwide, household names. 

Digital is transforming the way that many of us live our lives, from the way we buy goods and 

services to the manner in which we communicate with others. It also represents a golden 

opportunity for local councils to harness new and emerging technologies to redesign public 

services in a way which meets the expectations of customers. 

More recently (2013), the Government released its ‘Cloud First Policy’ which states that public 

organisations should consider and fully evaluate potential cloud solutions first before 

considering any other option. Until recently, councils adopted the cloud to perform specific 

tasks or procured ‘software as a service’ from a range of suppliers. 

Now, a new wave of cloud adoption is beginning to take place, where many private 
companies and a few councils have successfully moved many – or all – of their services to a 
single cloud platform, hosting multiple services.  
  
It is true that South Holland District Council does not have the resources of large private 

sector companies that can harness cutting edge technology to deliver services. In addition to 

this, we are faced with a number of other challenges, including: a ‘Digital skills gap’ in our 

Page 77



 

6 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

workforce, the need to adhere to strict data security standards – particularly with the 

introduction in 2018 of the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) – and, perhaps most 

significantly, unprecedented cuts to the Council’s budget. 

Nevertheless, Digital technology has the potential to enable the Council and our partners to 

deliver services in a more efficient and cost-effective way. But in order to realise these 

benefits, Digital technology needs to be embraced by all services across the council, as well as 

by our customers. 

The pace of Digital means that not everyone in our communities are equally prepared for the 

changes taking place. While we need to increase our Digital ‘offer’ to keep up with this rapid 

change and stimulate growth in the district, we need to make sure we do this in an inclusive 

way. While we will support all customers to adopt new, Digital ways of accessing Council 

services, we will also provide extra support to do so for those who need it, including our more 

vulnerable residents. 

4. Our Digital Agenda 
We live in a digital world. Our daily lives are increasingly built around services which are 
delivered digitally.  An ever-increasing number of us expect to be able to conduct daily 
routine business and activity using digital technology. For many, perhaps the majority, this is 
now their preference over any other forms of contact. The world is becoming Digital by 
choice.  You can read more about South Holland’s Digital customers in Appendix F. 
 
As technology advances, so does our customers’ expectations: not only do they want services 
to be delivered online, they also expect them to be easy to use, and focused on achieving the 
task – quickly and securely.  
 
In line with these expectations, this strategy is not simply about moving current service 
provision to online channels. It is about redesigning services and accessing them in the most 
cost-effective way, with the aim of giving customers’ choice and meeting their needs within 
the resources we have available. 
 
Rather than focus specifically on transferring our current paper-based processes to an online 
channel we will instead focus on strategic transformation which must include process 
redesign along with re-organisation, people and cultural change. All of these are inter-related. 
Digital transformation cannot take place if the Council’s technology, processes and culture are 
not in tune. 
 
This Strategy is, therefore, not led by technology, but by the transformation agenda of the 
Council which will require process and system redesign. Technology will enable this Strategy 
and drive it forward, but it does not determine what and how services will be delivered. 
 

There is still much to do to ensure that the uptake of digital services is widespread and the 

potential benefits are realised. 

Page 78



 

7 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

The greater uses of Digital technology and information can deliver enormous benefits to the 
Council and its stakeholders, with the potential to: 
 

 Deliver better outcomes 

 Reduce costs and deliver better ‘Value for Money’ services 

 Increase efficiencies 

 Stimulate and enable innovation and new ways of working 

 Re-shape the relationship between the Council, Customers and Partners  

 Use ‘Social Media’ to improve communications and partnership working 

 Access and exploit a wealth of available data 
 
Working in collaboration with our partners (e.g. CPBS and co-location with the Department 
for Work and Pensions), we will acquire a deep knowledge and understanding of the 
strengths and aspirations of our communities and use this knowledge to develop local, place-
based and community specific services, complemented by Digital and online services; this is 
our ‘Digital Agenda’. 
 
To enable us to do this, we will align to the Government Digital Service standards, which will 
ensure we deliver high quality Digital services. By collaborating with partners and 
organisations who are already adopting these maturing standards, we will learn from their 
mistakes and build on their successes in order to expedite our journey. 
 
To realise these benefits, the strategy will describe our ‘Digital Vision’, which describes how 
the Council will maximise the opportunities of Digitalisation, reflecting the needs of 
customers, allowing for choice and balancing efficiency with improved service quality. 
 

5. Strategy aims 
South Holland District Council needs an ICT and Digital Strategy because Digital technology 

has the potential to transform the district and the lives of residents while generating long-

term savings. We know, for example, that services completed using Digital channels generally 

cost much less than more traditional channels, such as phone or face-to-face.  

For example, the cost to the Council of a face-to-face visit to one of our offices to pay Council 

Tax is around seven more times more expensive than if the resident makes the payment 

online. 

However, to maximise the benefits that Digital technology can bring, we need to dramatically 

increase the scope and in some areas, the pace of our work. Change in technology is rapid and 

growth in the uptake of the latest emerging technologies such as: online shopping, mobile 

devices, social media and high-speed broadband, together with the use of ‘Data Sharing’, 

present huge opportunities for the Council and its partners. 

Page 79



 

8 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

To meet the increasing expectation of customers and to keep up with – and adopt – current 
trends in Digital interaction, it is important that the Council has a clear approach to the 
improvement and delivery of Digital and ICT. 
 
This Digital and ICT Strategy forms part of a wider portfolio of strategic documents that 
collectively form the vision for the future of the Council. A clear and robust Digital and ICT 
Strategy is critical in order to avoid poor decision-making around the choice of new systems, 
while also supporting the future streamlining of the existing ICT estate. Collectively, this helps 
to ensure that any investment made in Digital and ICT is maximised and aligned with the 
Council’s vision. 
 
The Council is already responding to this challenge through the delivery of its Corporate Plan 

(see Appendix A) and ‘Moving Forward’ change programme (see Appendix B) for which Digital 

technologies are a critical enabler.  

 

The Council vision will be delivered through the transformation of the Council. The 

transformation will in part be supported by the Council’s Digital and ICT Strategy and 

delivered through a work programme of Digital projects, to be agreed by Council in 2019, and 

ICT projects, to be determined. 

The following diagram shows how the ICT and Digital Strategy will underpin the council’s 

wider strategies and vision: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Corporate Plan ambition: 

‘To continue to increase the prosperity and wellbeing of our residents and 
businesses, whilst striving to protect and enhance the district’s 

environment and its unique and historic character.’ 

 
 

Moving Forward Programme

ICT & Digital Stategy

Customer Access 
Strategy

Work 
Programme

Projects

Informs 

Informs 

Informs 

Informs 

Informs 

Page 80



 

9 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 

The ICT & Digital strategy will form a part of the ‘Golden Thread’ from the Corporate Plan to 

the ICT delivery projects and help shape the Council of the future. 

This ICT and Digital Strategy sets out the Council’s approach to the required changes and a 

bold Digital vision, set out in section 6 of this strategy.  

The Digital & ICT strategy will help the Council to: 

 Position Digital & ICT as a vital support for achieving the Council objectives. 

 Define the future ‘minimum standard’ for Digital & ICT. 

 Gain approval for Digital & ICT investment and improvement. 

 Balance the need for savings against invest to save. 

 Develop robust governance and assurance. 

 Enable collaboration with partners. 

 Encourage investment in South Holland. 

 Realise the Council vision for Digital & ICT of the future. 
 
The Digital & ICT strategy will support the transformation programme of the Council.  
 
The ICT element (servers, applications, networks, etc.) of the strategy defines the: 

 Future use of information and communication technology.  

  

 The Digital element of the strategy focuses on the: 

 Organisational design (culture, policies, training, etc.) needed to introduce the new 
and emerging technologies.  
 

Both strategies focus on enabling and optimising the services of the Council. 
 
The Digital and ICT strategy will enable the Council to make better, more strategic investment 
decisions in technology, based on ‘simplify, standardise, share’ design principles. These 
principles will achieve better outcomes and savings for local public services through redesign 
and Digital transformation. 
 

The principles are: 
 

Simplify – the way we operate, in order to add value and drive up efficiency. 
 
Standardise – the way we operate, emulating the best and enabling agility. 
 
Share – collaborate, innovate and inform. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

10 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 

6. Our digital vision 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Council recognises that Digital will be the key to unlocking economic growth and 
improving services. Effective use of Digital services by customers, businesses, partners and 
the voluntary and community sector has the potential to transform the way our district works 
and transform people’s lives: boost productivity, drive economic growth, provide jobs, 
connect individuals and revitalise the way services are delivered. 
  
To enable this we need residents (old and young) and businesses (big and small) to have the 
right skills and access to modern and reliable technology. As a district we are gearing up to 
provide this, but we know that more can be done to join up provision and opportunities, and 
present a truly district-wide vision. We will promote discussions with partners and we will 
continue to use our influence to promote the broader Digital South Holland agenda. 
    
Within this increasingly Digital environment, the Council needs to keep pace with change. We 
have more to do, to make it easy enough for those who want to engage digitally, and to make 
a persuasive case to those who are hesitant and unconvinced about the benefits of ‘going 
Digital’. We need to develop a Digital service ‘offer’ which matches and surpasses customer 
expectations to the point where it becomes the channel of choice.  
 
Improving our Digital services means designing simple, seamless and user-friendly processes 
that make it easy for customers to access services and make payments whenever and 
wherever they want to.  It means capturing the right information in the right format to enable 
us to improve services and efficiency. 
   

Our vision is: To provide high quality and easy to use services that are designed with 

our customers in mind, that are delivered efficiently with improved value for money. 

To encourage customers to self-serve, wherever possible, so that we can focus our 

resources on the people who need our help the most. To improve the digital skills and 

connectivity of our residents and the region. 

We want to: 

 Improve Digital opportunities for customers to help them access a better 
experience of Council services, and beyond 

 Give staff and elected Members the right Digital tools and training to work 
‘smarter’  

 Minimise internal costs of service 

 Use external providers where beneficial and cost effective 

 Generate revenue by: 
o Making it easier and more convenient to pay online 
o Using Digital to market our traded services  

 

Page 82



 

11 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 
 
But it isn’t limited to traditional services and activities.  We want to promote Digital change in 
everything we do – encouraging and supporting the use of Digital technology in areas outside 
of our direct control such as Health and Social Care. 
 
As the Council faces up to increasing financial pressure on budgets, we need to use Digital to 
help change our service provision while maintaining outcomes for customers, partners and 
suppliers. 
 
It also means ensuring our staff have a ‘Digital mindset’, and not only fully understand how 
Digital can change and improve lives, but actively support others in doing so.    
 
Our Digital services will give us better data and insight about customers helping us to make 
continuous improvements to services. Digital engagement will enrich our consultation with 
our customers on policy proposals and changes so that we can make better decisions. 
 
This will have big implications for customers, councillors, our staff and our systems, involving 
changes to the types of jobs we will be doing, the services we provide, and the skills and 
technology we will need. 
 
As a result, the Council’s ICT and Digital strategy supports the wider strategic goal of enabling 

the workforce and elected Members to operate in more of a ‘smart working’ mode. 

 This will be achieved by ensuring that:  

- key internal systems (e.g. contact centre system, housing system etc.) have full 

capability to be accessed from a home or other remote location outside of the main 

Council office locations 

- smart tools (such as collaboration, messaging, webchat, data sharing) are introduced 

where applicable in order to support staff working outside of the main Council office 

locations 

- sophisticated communications tools (such as videoconferencing) are made available to 

facilitate attendance of meetings and conferences from locations outside of the main 

Council office locations 

Members will also be able to make use of the smart tools and communication tools detailed 

above, therefore supporting options for remote attendance of committee and other meetings 

e.g. by joining via a video or audio conference.  

6.1 Where are we now? 

In 2016, South Holland District Council invested in a new ICT Programme to: 

 Create a new ICT infrastructure to deliver improvements to its ICT services 

 Enhance security and disaster recovery 

 Put foundations in place for staff mobile working and improved information sharing 
 

Page 83



 

12 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 
 
 
Nearing completion, the ICT Programme has delivered a number of key improvements in 
addition to the new infrastructure and in-house ICT Team. These include replacing the 
Council’s Internet mapping (GIS) solution. The Council’s current solution was considered no 
longer fit for purpose at a time when there are growing expectations that maps will be 
integrated seamlessly and intuitively on websites and that mobile devices will be location-
aware. As a result, the Council is currently procuring a modern Internet/Intranet mapping 
solution for use by customers and officers. 
 
But while services provided by the existing ICT function ultimately touch every person in the 
district, the current service is a technology-focused service with limited Digital capabilities.  
 
Consideration of the existing ICT shows: 
 

 While most of the existing infrastructure has been replaced, there are further 
opportunities to leverage the potential of Digital.  

 Although many of the Council’s line-of-business systems and applications meet our 
back-office requirements, many of them do not offer customer self-service solutions. 
Similarly these same applications lack mobile solutions to assist officers in delivering 
efficient services when operating outside the office. 

 The need for infrastructure and application replacement and upgrades can create an 
opportunity for a radical reinvention of the Council’s operating model, Digital and ICT 
landscape. 

 The opportunity to transform to a more sophisticated and set of demand driven, agile 
and integrated services now exists. 

 
Prior to 2015 and the launch of the Council’s Moving Forward change programme, the 
Council, through its partner CPBS, prioritised face-to-face contact and telephone in the 
delivery of its channel strategy.  This has been reflected in the Council’s investment and use of 
Customer Relationship management (CRM) technologies supporting our Customer Contact 
Centre and satellite offices.  
 
However, by making better use of our business insight and data, the Council has begun to 
reorganise its customer services so it can better meet the changing needs of local residents 
and businesses. This has included making a decision to improve customer support at its 
Spalding office – with more staff and ‘self-serve’ machines to be installed – and promote 
more ways to pay for council services in more convenient locations, while closing its cash 
office.  
 
In terms of its Digitalisation work (part of the Moving Forward change programme), the 
Council has made significant improvements to its customer ‘offer’, including: 

 Reviewing and launching a new, mobile device-compatible Council website  

 Creating a ‘My Account’ function for online customers, enabling more digital 
availability of our services 

Page 84



 

13 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 Delivering a new staff Intranet, which is clearer and more user friendly 

 Developing a ‘book & pay’ online service for Environmental Health and Licensing  
 

 Enabling online Garden Waste subscriptions, as part of a pilot scheme 
 

The Council’s website receives 38,000 visits a month, with usage increasing year-on-year. In 
line with Digital trends, the way people access the site is also changing with over 47% now 
accessing it on a tablet or mobile phone. 
 
The website structure and design is a result of applying industry best practice principles; it is 
based on real user testing, with local customers, customer data and research, rather than 
internal preference or opinion. This user-centred approach has led to the Council receiving a 3 
(out of 4) star ranking in the 2016/17 SOCITM Better Connected report – above the industry 
standard and a significant improvement on the 1 star rating achieved prior to the Council’s 
Moving Forward change programme being launched. 
 
The website’s core purpose is to provide information-based pages and give users the ability to 

self-serve wherever possible. For example: all of the top ten transaction types for a customer 

to contact the Council can be performed online. However, the provision of online self-service 

options is far from complete with some existing online services only amounting to the 

customer sending an untracked email to the back office via a website form. Officers manually 

process thousands of these requests every year, creating avoidable follow-up contacts for 

both the Contact Centre and individual services. 

As a result, the Council recognises that the resource it needs to invest – not just in terms of 
officer time and budget but also in service systems that allow the integration of online forms 
which are accessible via the My Account function – must now match the pace and scale of its 
ambition for organisational and Digital transformation. 
 

6.2 Where do we need to be? 
 
To ensure that the Council continues to procure and deliver good ICT services we will deliver 
against a set of guiding principles: 
 

 Insist on all things ‘open’ - standards, specifications & integration etc. where possible 

 All systems allow ‘single sign-on’ with data accessible to other Council systems 

 Put the stakeholder at the heart of everything we do 

 Where a system provides a customer-facing front end this shall be responsive and easy 
to read and understand 

 Invest to Save 

 Use Cloud solutions where it is prudent to do so 

 Source solutions from the providers who deliver best “Value for Money” 

 Deliver elegant and simple access to services 

 Design in flexibility – scale, demand, capacity and cost 

 Deliver leading edge business solutions through skilled and motivated staff 

Page 85



 

14 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 Protect our Digital and ICT service - balancing “Value for Money‟ and risk 

 Benchmark against the best 

 Identify excellence, emulate and then exceed it 

 Maximise the use of customer data - leverage our Information Assets to facilitate our 
services 

 Use experts to guide us 

 Partner, collaborate and integrate – Design / Build / Run 

 Remove duplication, consolidate and rationalise 

 Manage and Operate in a lean and agile manner 
 
To be effective, our Digital and ICT strategy needs to: 
 

 Be continually developed, iteratively and over time 

 Allow time for consultation and collaboration 

 Allow time for training and development to support cultural change 
 Not just be inward facing 

 

The best strategies consult and involve stakeholders and partners – based on the strategy’s 
successful outcomes and as part of the Governance and Assurance process, we’ll make sure  
this happens continuously as we move forward; we’ll also be monitoring, measuring and 
reporting on how well we’re doing. 
 
A successful Digital and ICT Strategy isn’t just a document written, read and put on a shelf; it’s 
an ethos, a way of working for the Digital and ICT delivery. So, it’s important for us to be 
realistic about our objectives and timescales.  
 
This initial iteration of the Digital and ICT Strategy will focus on the enablement of the future 
Council service delivery model – future iterations of the strategy will start to shift towards the 
sharing and collaboration between the Council, its stakeholders and partners. 
 
To achieve our ambition of being an Intelligent Council, our information systems need to 
converge so that services – currently working in data silos – can access data, and process that 
data from a single platform. This is a challenge as much of the Council’s solutions are locked 
into long-term contracts, of differing lengths.  When procuring new applications in future, the 
ICT Team will work closely with individual services and the Council’s new shared Procurement 
Team, to take a whole-council view to its ICT needs.  
 
The Local Government ICT landscape is evolving fast. There are new innovative solutions 
arriving on the market every month. The traditional council application providers are being 
squeezed out of the market by relatively unknown solutions. This ICT revolution is still 
progressing and within the next two years, some of these solutions will begin to mature and 
clear favourites will become apparent. 
 
But while the cloud technology market begins to mature, there are important implications to 
consider for its successful implementation in Local Government, in particular: 
 

Page 86



 

15 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 Factoring in the time, cost and resourcing needed for wholesale data migration to a 
new supplier 
 

 Ensuring the protection and security of migrated data (councils, not cloud providers 
are responsible for ensuring that data is protected and encrypted) 

 Redesigning services and processes in a way that maximises the value of cloud, and a 
return on councils’ investment 

 Training staff and members to adopt new processes and more agile ways of working 
 
Most councils, including South Holland, are therefore taking a more phased approach to cloud 
implementation: gradually introducing cloud-based systems as part of routine re-
procurement, or through the redesign of key services and processes. For example, the use of 
Itrent to record and monitor a range of HR functions (including payroll, annual leave, 
sickness). 

 
6.3 How do we get there? 
 
Technical governance: 

 Reporting to the ICT Governance Board, a new ICT & Digital Steering Group will be set 
up to: 

o Prioritise developments based on customer demand and savings to the back 
office. For each development there will be a clear specification. 

o Proactively engage with service areas to provide online services where they are 
lacking and continually improve existing services that need to. 

 The Council will procure and develop appropriate technical solutions to meet the 
needs of both customers and the business. For example: 

o A product that allows for the development and maintenance of dynamic, 
mobile responsive forms that integrate with back office systems and keep the 
customer informed on the progress of their request.  

o Maps that are user friendly, mobile responsive and that can be integrated. 
 

 All new developments will be user tested, building this process into all online projects. 

 Testing, data, best practice and research will be used to continually fine tune the 
content, navigation and search already on the website, ensuring that we use evidence 
not opinion. 

 Accessibility testing will be conducted with external organisations. 

 Service areas acknowledge that the website is the most popular customer channel and 
adhere to industry best practice. 

 Provide staff with the necessary time and resource to maintain and improve the site. 

 Work with suppliers to improve existing online systems when issues are identified. 

Page 87



 

16 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 Prioritise content and services customers want/need rather than content officers wish 
to promote or store online. 

 Follow the writing guide for website authors. 

 Online services will be actively promoted via various channels, highlighting an easy to 
use, 24/7 service. 

 Staff are trained to ensure their skills meet the Digital challenge and can support our 
customers. 

Culture change: 
Successful achievement of the Digital strategy will require considerable changes in corporate 
culture, involving acceptance that: 
 

 Customer service is at the centre of everything the Council does 

 Process redesign and simplification are not optional 

 The Council’s approach to service delivery is to optimise use of Digital technologies 

 The website is a key element of service delivery, not an optional extra 
 

These changes in corporate culture will not be achieved without strong leadership, 
championing of the strategy by senior managers, and actively embedding the strategy into 
Council and service plans. It will be important to work with individual service areas to ensure 
there is good understanding of the concepts behind the Digital strategy, and to ensure there 
is buy-in amongst the Senior Management Team and staff. 
 

6.4 How will we know we have achieved our vision?  
 
We will know we have made difference when we have genuinely changed the way our 
Council, our customers and our partners feel about our Digital offer: 

 
New and existing customers 
 It’s easy to find information about services I want to use, and the Council keeps me 

informed about changes and issues which matter. 
 I can contact the Council anytime I want, using any device I choose. 

 I get a consistent online experience whichever of the Council’s services I’m using. 

 The Council’s online services are easy to use, reliable and secure. I have my own 
account and I only have to log in once.  

 I can access the Council’s website for free in a helpful and safe way. 

 I feel confident doing this, and can use my skills to do much more than contact the 
Council. 

 I prefer to contact the Council online rather than any other way as it saves me 
time. 

 There’s personalised support to help me go from an absolute beginner to expert 
user of the internet.   

Councillors 

Page 88



 

17 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 I am confident that the people I represent are supported to access Council services 
digitally. 
 
 

 I have a better understanding of people living in my ward and what services they 
use and value. 

 It’s easy for me to reach a lot of people online and meet their needs. 

 It’s easy for me to keep on top of Council and ward business. 

 Increased use of social media and online contact with the people I represent 
means improved citizenship and involvement. 

Staff and managers  

 I fully understand the benefits of Digital and actively support others in doing so. 

 As a lot of routine processes are automated, I can focus more of my time on the 
things that make the most difference to customers. 

 I’m a lot more productive as I can work flexibly and remotely, and it’s easier to 
collaborate with colleagues, partners and suppliers. 

 We have a better understanding of our customers which informs how we can 
design and target our services. 

 Insight and foresight helps us to act quickly and either prevent problems or 
intervene early to improve outcomes. 

 We provide our customers with seamless end-to-end services, make the most of 
every contact to provide better service and to learn about our customers’ needs 
and expectations. 

 We provide consistent services more cost effectively and maximise income 
recovery. 

 We work more closely with other services to provide joined up services to 
customers. 

 We can gather and analyse a wide range of data to help us improve performance. 

Businesses, suppliers and partners 

 We can interact with the Council anytime we want using any device. 

 The Council works with us to provide joined up services to our mutual customers. 

 The Council helps me to innovate and grow my business through provision of 
infrastructure support and skills development for us and potential customers. 

 Providing goods and services to the Council is cost effective and straightforward, 
because we can deal with them digitally from procurement right through to 
delivery and ongoing contract management.   

Visitors to the District 

 It’s easy to find the information I need and access services to get the most out of 
my visit to the district. 

 I can find out lots of information about the district from the Council’s historical 
records and picture archives which the Council have put online. 

 I can research my family tree from the Birth, Deaths and Marriage records the 
Council has on their website. 

Page 89



 

18 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

Digital 
Customer

Digital 
Council

Digital 
Place

Digital Foundation 

 

7. Our Digital themes 

 
 
 
 
   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Theme 1. Digital Foundation - A resilient and reliable Infrastructure: 
 
A secure and robust Digital and ICT foundation will enhance the efficiency and responsiveness 
of the Council’s operations, supported by a highly skilled ICT workforce that will take 
advantage of the latest and emerging technologies and opportunities as they arise. We will 
take a ‘whole Council’ approach when implementing our infrastructure, which will include  
core ‘Enterprise’ components such as; information, email, voice and data networks, hosting 
and client devices. We will pursue sustainable and environmentally responsible choices in 
procurement, pursuing green options and more efficient use of resources to reduce energy 
usage. 
 
The provision of such a level of capability requires a solid and dependable service that will be 
maintained and invested in on a regular basis. It will also have an ‘appropriate’ level of 
resilience, measured against risk and driven by updated policies; the service will be scalable, 
delivering capacity to reflect organisational demand and changes balancing the need in 
delivering ‘Value for money’ for our customers. 

The Council’s Digital Themes: 
 

● Digital Customer   ● Digital Council  
● Digital Place    ● Digital Foundation 

 

D
D 

 

Digital Foundation 

Page 90



 

19 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 
 
 
Opportunity – high availability 
High availability will ensure Council services are available when and where they are needed 
 

Opportunity - Digitally capable 
The Council can build future capability to deliver technology services through a broader range 
of partnerships including suppliers and other public bodies (Eg: councils partnering with 
universities, operating Digital and/or ICT apprenticeships) 
 
Outcome 
This theme will support the Council in: 

 Delivering the Council’s Corporate Plan 

 Delivering the Council’s Moving Forward change programme 

 Delivering Themes 1-3 

 

Theme 2. Digital Customer – The customer perspective: 
 
Enabled by the Digital services and information they need, online and via a “channel of 
choice”. Facilitating an ‘end to end’ service delivery in a user-friendly way, similar to that seen 
in much of the private sector. This is in response to more and more Digital customers that are 
internet-savvy and mobile connected – ‘how does a Digital service enable me’? For example; 
to consume Digital services, communicate digitally, shape personal services effectively, 
available (24/7) with privacy respected. 
 
Opportunity – improved, efficient customer journeys 
Improved, more efficient customer journeys will enable residents and businesses to interact 
with the Council Digitally for better and quicker outcomes. 

 

Outcome 
This theme will support the Council in: 

 Enabling customers to access end-to-end services 

 
Theme 3. Digital Council - The staff perspective: 
 
The workforce will have sufficient training and skills to use the Digital tools required; to deliver 
services effectively and efficiently – delivering positive outcomes for customers by giving our 
workforce access to the business data and solutions they need, enabled by the best available 
technology and ensuring they have the skills and proficiency to use them effectively. We will 
bring together all content onto a single Digital Platform - supporting channel shift to self-
service for our workforce and reinforced through the provision of intuitive transactions, which 
will include the need for “access for all” – including staff, regardless of their location. 
 
Opportunity – smarter working 

Page 91



 

20 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

Smart working will create a 21st Century workforce that is focused on delivering outcomes 
with bureaucracy minimised through automation. 
 
Outcome 
This theme will support the Council in: 

 Enhancing the Council's efficiency 

 
Theme 4. Digital Place - The community perspective: 
 
We will continue to engage with stakeholders, partners, suppliers and investors across the 
district and the County in the maintenance, development and design of our communications 
infrastructure. We will be supportive of applications by telecommunications companies which 
will result in improved Digital connectivity in our area. We will also call on partners to ensure 
that the broadband needs of our region are met.  
 
Opportunity – a connected place 
Locally-provided technology will bring communities together and improves quality of life 
within South Holland. 
 

Opportunity – enabling collaboration 
Collaboration will enable the Council to work more effectively with partners and each other. 
 
Outcome 
This theme will support the Council in: 
 

 Enhancing the lives of customers 

 Enabling a “smart place” 

 Providing income opportunities 

 Facilitating the delivery of community priorities 

8. Information security and assurance 
The ICT Service has a unique challenge in making sure that the Council can operate its 

business in a safe and secure environment, while not inhibiting the development of Digital 

services. This is set against the need to manage the expectations of our customers to access 

services in the way they wish, and the aspirations of elected members and officers to adopt 

more efficient and effective service delivery models. 

The requirements on Local Government organisations, such as South Holland Council, to 

protect the confidentiality, integrity and accessibility of information has historically been 

perceived as a ‘blocker’ to Digital service delivery. However, effective Digital services have 

protection that proportionately mitigates the risks and threats posed against them. 

The Council will adopt a pragmatic balance of information governance and risk, in 

consultation with the organisation’s Strategic Information Governance Group and Data 

Page 92



 

21 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

Protection Officer, with emphasis placed on how to enable and support the business. The 

shift in focus towards proportionate information assurance will allow the Council to  

 

successfully unlock the potential of Digital whilst maintaining an appropriate level of data 

protection. 

At the same time, we will continue to consult and collaborate with appropriate external 

bodies (E.g.: Public Sector Network, Information Commissioner’s Office, etc.) and our 

Internal/External Auditors to ensure that both the technical and behavioural aspects of 

information security are addressed in a co-ordinated and systematic way to reflect the 

changing needs of the Council. 

9.   Digital work programme 

The Council is taking a long term view of the development and deployment of Digital and ICT 
Services. The Golden Thread describes how the Council Plan, Transformation, Digital and ICT 
will deliver these future needs. To support this the Council has produced a Digital work 
programme to illustrate the key areas of work against its implementation work streams. 

In order to deliver this strategy and work programme, the Council is currently bringing 
together all known Transformation, Digital and ICT projects into a single place, and will review 
its governance structure to take account of the Golden Thread. The work programme will not 
only identify Council services to be placed online, but identify the staff resources and funding 
required for its delivery. 

To help us prioritise Digital services and create a roadmap, the following strategies are being 
developed and should be considered a priority for the Council: 

A Customer Access Strategy which described the future vision and roadmap for customer 

access to services. This strategy will establish future service channels and locations, rate of 

movement to those channels and volumes. This will enable the roadmap to meet the needs of 

the changes 

Rather than just accept that the current technologies in use within the Council should 

continue (currently a website linking to legacy systems) an appraisal and strategic selection 

from the current technologies available for delivery of Digital Council services is being 

undertaken. 

Currently the Council uses a web platform with web forms that link to existing line of business 

systems. It has not yet considered what its options are for specific Digital tools. Different tools 

will facilitate different approaches and different speeds of implementation which will impact 

the speed of the roadmap and the budget. 

These two pieces of work are critical requirements for the generation of the future roadmap 

of Digital and ICT.  

Page 93



 

22 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

Appendices 

A. Corporate Plan priorities 

B. Moving Forward programme 

 

The Council’s change programme, ‘Moving Forward’, has enabled the Council to deliver its 
Corporate Plan vision. While the programme is now complete, the Digital and ICT strategy and 
supporting work programme has been designed to continue the Council’s service 
transformation through Digitalisation. 

The Council Priorities... 
 
This Corporate Plan 2015-2019 sets out how the Council will work with 
partners to achieve its ambition to: 
 

 Develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent 
communities while protecting the most vulnerable 

 Have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents 
to develop and thrive 

 To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way 

 Encourage the local economy to be vibrant with continued growth 
 

‘Moving Forward’, the Council’s change programme identifies four 
themes: 
 

 DIGITISATION - To have online services so good that people (who 
can) choose to use them 

 ALIGNING PUBLIC SERVICES - To work with all our public-sector 
partners in a more joined up way to meet the future needs of our 
communities 

 ORGANISATIONAL DESIGN - To have a flexible workforce and 
community that meets the future needs of the business 

 COMMERCIALISATION - To have a commercial mind with a 
community approach 

Page 94



 

23 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

C. Our Digital objectives 
 

Digitisation Objectives:  

 Will evidence how customers want to access services 

 Will review all services to make them operate in a Digital way 

 Will redesign “Back Office” processes to implement online services 

 We recognise that some people will not be able to access Digital services either 
because they are vulnerable or for technical reasons, in these situations we will ensure 
that they are still able to access services in the most appropriate way 

 We will have a new website that is easy to navigate and tells people what they need to 
know 

 The majority of customers will only need to contact us once 

 The majority of business transactions will be completed online 

 Residents will be able to “book and pay” for services online 

 Residents will be able to access online services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week 

 We will have self-service machines in reception areas so we can support those 
residents that find using online services challenging 

 

Aligning Public Services Objectives: 

 Our services will be co-located and co-working with our partners in the best location 
to meet the communities needs 

 We will work with partners to build a hub of public services around the most 
vulnerable residents in our community 

 To our residents the public sector will be working as one organisation with shared 
processes, systems and ways of working 

 Our office space will be reviewed and will be working in a more effective way 

 The Buildings we own and those of our partners will be better utilised 
 
 

Organisational Design Objectives: 

 Digital technology will drive innovative ways of working to ensure value for money 

 Staff will be trained and supported to develop the skills they need to work in 
innovative ways 

 
  

Page 95



 

24 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

D. Our Digital Principles 
 

All South Holland officers are asked to sign up to the following set of principles: 

To improve our customers' experience and reduce service delivery costs, you should:  
 Understand and adopt these principles 

 Promote the principles with all your colleagues 

 Check your services against the principles 

 Implement the principles 

 Contact our Web Team if you need new online forms – the Web Team can create these 

Where a service is already available online: 
 Give it prominence in all Council communications 

 Remove other channels (except main Council telephone number) from all communications to 
direct as many customer enquiries as possible to the online channel: 

o do not publish direct phone numbers 
o do not publish email addresses – use online forms that capture structured data 
o do not ask for letters or other papers to be sent to the Council – if forms need to be 

completed, use online forms 
o do not ask for payment by cheque – it's the least efficient way of taking a payment 

 If an online form delivers an email that has to be processed manually, consider whether 
automation would deliver savings – the form could be entered into a system automatically to save 
time and effort 

Where a service is not yet available online: 
 Publish all information about the service on the website, adhering to our style and content guides 

– do not say 'contact us for more information' as all information should be online 

 Consider whether an online form could be created to capture initial contact details 

 If an online form is not appropriate: 
o publish only the central phone number 
o do not publish an email address 

Where a new service is being considered: 
 Design the service to be delivered online from the outset – 'Digital by Design' 

 Avoid the use of any other channels if possible – make it online-only, as: 
o those who don't have their own access to technology can get online using public access 

PCs in our offices, or their local library 
o those who don't know how to use technology can get help and support from our staff (by 

telephoning us or visiting us in person) or through support from friends, family, or 
neighbours. 

For all services, ask the following questions. 
 Is the service available online? If not, why not? 

 Are cheque payments involved in the process? If so, put a plan in place to discourage them. 

 Is any paper involved in the process? If so, put a plan in place to remove all paper. 

 Is an email address published? If so, put a plan in place to replace it with an online form. 

 Is your technology integrated so the customer can automatically be notified of updates and 
outcomes, to avoid the likelihood of follow-up contacts? If not, assess the benefits of doing so and, 
where appropriate, submit a bid for funding to integrate it. 

Page 96



 

25 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 
 

E. Our Architecture Principles 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Digital Council business and the Internet of Things demand a new level of excellence in 
enterprise architecture principles and practices. The Council must arm itself with for the road 
ahead and be ready for future business and technology innovation. 
 
The Enterprise Architecture principles express how the Council will design and deploy 
information systems across the organisation. They serve to streamline and reduce the 
complexity of IT investment decisions. 
 
 The principles should be used to:  
  

 Evaluate the selection of suppliers, solution designs, products and services 

 Support evidence-based decision making 

 Help define functional requirements  
  
These principles help projects and suppliers with their architecture and service management 
planning and will be used throughout the project lifecycle from concept validation to 
procurement and delivery. The principles are relevant for planning and delivering future ICT. 
They are inter-related and must be considered as a set. They describe the desired behaviors, 
and rationale, expected in all initiatives containing any elements of Information, 
Communications or Technology (ICT).  
  
 
 
 

W We have developed Architectural Design Principles to inform the 
delivery of this strategy 

 

 Secure By Design 

 Cloud Where Appropriate 

 Information Led Design 

 Share and Reuse 

 Use Open Data 

 Use Open Source Software 

 Any Device, Anytime, Anywhere Computing 

 Integration 

 A Digitally Capable Workforce 

Page 97



 

26 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 
The approach the Council will take to the designing, sourcing and delivery of ICT and Digital 
will be defined by a number of key architectural principles. Above these sits a single guiding 
principle: 
 

The use of ICT and Digital by the Council must add value to the customer; whether a 
customer, a business, a partner organisation or other service within the Council. 

 

We will adopt the following Design Principles to inform the delivery of this strategy: 

Principle 1 – secure by design 

The security of our systems and data is of overriding importance. Information security will be 
designed in to all our systems, changes and processes right from the start. 

Principle 2 – cloud where appropriate 

We will reduce our local infrastructure through a preference that systems will be vendor or 
cloud hosted where it is cost effective to do so. 

Principle 3 – information-led design 

We will better use the data we hold to allow us to design and provide more tailored services. 

Principle 4 – share and reuse 

We will seek to join up with others and share services, capacity and capability. We will learn 
from others and reuse existing software, processes and ideas. 

Principle 5 – using open data 

Wherever it is possible we will publish our data openly and online, for reuse by customers, 
our partners, researchers and investors. 

Principle 6 – using open source software 

We will always consider the use of open source software. 

Principle 7 – anywhere, anytime computing 

Our staff and customers will be able to securely use our platform and services at any time and 
from any location using their device of choice. 

Principle 8 – Systems that Talk to Each Other 

Regardless of where our systems are hosted we will always work to ensure that the systems 
can talk to each other and are integrated with our partners where necessary. 

Principle 9 – a digitally capable workforce 

To realise maximum benefit from new technology we will create a skilled and technology 

confident workforce through investing in learning and development. 

Page 98



 

27 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

F. Our Digital Customers 
We wish our customers to be fully included in the Digital Economy and Digital Society. 
The greater uses of Digital Technology and Information are enormously beneficial to the 
Council, its customers and partners. 
 
Technologies have become very much a part of our daily lives and will continue to shape the 
way we live. The Council must continue to leverage and adapt to changes in technologies to 
provide the best possible public service to our workforce and customers. 
 
Advancements in Digital Technologies enable unprecedented connectivity with the 
community. With the rollout of broadband connectivity across the district, together with 4G 
(5G on the horizon) mobile broadband, smart phones and other devices and with social media 
platforms such as Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, and GooglePlus+, the opportunity for the 
Council to connect with its stakeholders and partners is greater than ever. 
 

 
 
 
Nationally: On average more than 80% of the population now access the internet on a daily basis. (* Office of 
National Statistics) 

 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

% of the Population that Access the Internet on a 
Daily Basis

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Page 99



 

28 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 
 
In the East of 
England this 
represents an 
increase of 
approximately 25% 
(in terms of the 
number of people 
accessing the 
internet each day, 
every day) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
At 71% mobile or 
smartphones are the most 
popular devices used by 
adults to access the 
internet in Great Britain. 
Desktop computers are 
down in popularity with 
only 40% of adults using 
these to access the 
internet in 2016.   

 
 
 

The most recently published (December 2017) data from the Local Government 
Association and the London School of Economics and Political Science (LSE) show the 
following results for population of South Holland: 
 
 87% have been online within the last three months. 

 92% have broadband speeds of over 10 mgs (2mb is generally adequate for web sites) 

 67% have access to 4G (3G is adequate for websites) 
 
 

Page 100



 

29 
 

Digital & ICT STRATEGY 2019 - 2022 

 

 75% have all the five Basic digital skills to use digital services (if they choose to), which are: 
 

o Managing information - Find, manage and store digital information and 
content 

o Communicating - Communicate, interact, collaborate, share and connect with 
others 

o Transacting - Purchase and sell goods and services; organise your finances; 
register for and use digital government services 

o Problem-solving - Increase independence and confidence by solving problems 
using digital tools and finding solutions 

o Creating - Engage with communities and create basic digital content 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

71%

21%

5% 3% 0.30%

Customer Contact by Type

Phone

F2F

e mail

web

Social
media

While 80% of the population use the internet on a 
daily basis (87% in South Holland in last three 
months) only 3% of the Council interactions are via 
the web. 
 
The Council needs to accelerate its adoption of 
Digital and unify its design and delivery of enabling 
technologies. 
 
We will ensure that individuals or groups are not 
unfairly disadvantaged by the “Digital Divide” 
created by technology, by committing to deliver all 
of our services in a fair and equitable manner. 

 
 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Item No Title Lead Project Rational and Detail Risk on NOT progressing Risk of progressing Non Cashable Benefit Cashable Benefit One Off Cost to deliver Temporary Staff Cost Existing Staff Resource

1 Replacement of CRM CPBS

MS Dynamics (software) is end of live in March 2019 and must be replaced - The CRM 
(Customer Relationship Management) system is central to managing effective customer service 
operations.  The project will utilise the Goss ICM system as the Council's CRM. This will allow the 
roll-out of self- and assisted- service and the re engineering of most service request processes

No CRM Potential loss of some CRM features 

Enhanced customer experience 
Improved take-up of digital services

Reduction in paper processes
Allows Self / assisted service model

Removal of need for replacement CRM  together 
with implementation costs  Goss project management -& Training £30000 0 3 CPBS shared Developers - 18 months

1A
Review and rebuild of 

all 'Report it' processes
Charlotte Paine / 
Andy Prior / CPBS

Continued process re-engineering. Work with services to rebuild and streamline all 'report it' 
processes within Goss forms replacing the old TK Forms. 
During this rebuilding, all processes will be analysed and re-mapped to ensure the best customer 
journey and maximum efficiencies are achieved.
Where possible all systems will be integrated into the one 'My Account' function including the 
Bartec in-cab technology 

Poor customer experience
Labour intensive processes

Poor take-up

Time and cost resource to implement
Ability to cope with Increased demand

Enhanced customer experience
Improved  take-up of digital services

Higher number of issues reported
Greater productivity (more issues responded to)

Greater customer feedback

Reduction in officer time (Customer and 
Environmental Services teams)

Included in above

1PM 190 Days - £28690
1 Designer / UX 156 Days - £23556

1 Developer 120 days £18,120 
 Content Manager 120 Days £18120

Total: £88,486

£0

2 Open for Business Greg Pearson

To ensure that South Holland's 'offer' to new/small/prospective businesses is clearly 
communicated and easy to access via a new online portal which:
• Is easy to navigate
• Contains information relevant to their needs
• Uses language that businesses understand (i.e. not Council jargon)

Lack of investment in district Time and resource
Improved Local economy - Measured by 

1. new businesses moving to the area 
2. Existing businesses expanding. 

Increased business rates £5000 (Est) - Goss Cost of new / modified template

1 PM 5 Days £755
1 Developer 30 Days - £4530

1 UX / Designer 10 Days - £1510
1 Content manager 10 Days - £1510

Total: £8,305

£0

3 Integration of Tascomi Richard Boole

Integration between Goss customer portal and new Tascomi public protection software to 
present customer with a consistent view/process across all systems.

This will enable customers to self- and assisted- service access to the new public protection 
system. Later iterations will allow automation of some processes, such as Taxi license renewals

Non integration with Goss 
would present user with a 

confusing using experience and 
the process would not link into 

the CRM process at all 

Time and resource
Integrated systems reducing waste, improving the 

customer experience and facilitating the more 
efficient use of staff resources.

Greater number of people self-serving,  resulting 
in a reduction in phone calls leading to reduced 
officer time. Specifically, process mapping a 
redesigned Taxi Licensing Process indicated a 
potential saving of £7.6k per annum in staff time.

Existing funding

1 PM 15 Days - £2265
1 Developer 90 Days - £15,100

1 Designer / UX Resource 15 Days - £2265
Total: £18,120

0

4
Integration of 

Northgate housing 
software

Jason King

Integration of new housing software with Goss to allow:
• Creation of tenants portal
• Allow customers to self and assisted service with new housing system. 

This will include reporting maintenance issues with Council houses, giving notice, selecting and 
moving into a new property.

This project has the highest 
potential to produce significant 
cost saving an efficiencies; non 
implementation would prevent 

these savings

Time and resource
Integrated systems reducing waste, improving the 

customer experience and facilitating the more 
efficient use of staff resources.

Some cost efficiencies have already been realised 
as a result of the Housing service review and this 
project will put processes in place to allow the 
new service structure to operate more efficiently. 
However further savings can be achieved by: 
1. Reduction in phone calls. (By putting this 
process online it is estimated that the take up 
will be in the region 50% resulting in 
approximately 7,000 less calls)
2. Ability to charge tenants for chargeable 
repairs
3. Reduction in void time                                                                  
4. Process mapping the rent account 
management function, indicating a potential 
saving of £76k per annum in staff time.

Existing funding

1 PM 90 Days - £13,590
1 Developer 120 Days - £18,120

1 Designer / UX Resource 15 Days - £2265
Total: £33,975

£0

5
Digitalisation of Revs & 

Bens processes
CPBS / Sharon 

Hammond
Automation of many R & B processes to allow greater levels of self- and assisted-service.
Allow single sign on via Goss customer portal.

Out of date processes
No digital option

Higher costs
Low customer satisfaction

Time and resource Improving customer experience for residents Time savings for officers Detailed in CPBS transformation programme Not yet scoped Detailed in CPBS transformation programme

6 Migrate EHTC Website 
to new template

Craig Fowler
Migrate EHTC Website to new template and ongoing improvements to the site to improve SEO 
(Search Engine Optimisation), conversion rate (web visitors to booking numbers) and repeat 
visitors.

Low traffic to website
Lower conversion rate

Time and resource

Enhanced reputation
Increase consumer confidence and staff morale

More professional looking and ‘business like’ feel
Better Customer service
More efficient processes

Increased conversion rate and booking numbers - 
Greater revenue - estimate at £20k per annum

£1500 Template modifications

1 PM 5 Days - £755
1 Designer UX Resource 5 Days - £755
1 Content Manager 10 Days - £1510

Total: £3,020

£0

7 Capita payment page Andy Prior / CPBS

Improvement to the Capita payments page are to present the same look and feel as the new 
website. Currently the page does not match the site and is putting residents off using it due to 
perceived security issues

Low take up of online payments
Reputation of SHDC

Customer satisfaction
Time and resource

Enhanced customer experience
Improved take-up of digital services and Staged 

contact process replacing all other contact means 
on websites. 

Detailed tracking of user journeys
Overall a greater volume of online payments
Reduction in phone and face to face contacts

Greater take up of online payments - reducing 
accounts and CC staff time

3. One off  Capita cost of £23,000
1 PM 5 Days -£755

Total: £755
1 Developer 10 Days

9 Online 'venue' booking Emily Holmes
The implementation of Book and Pay across these two services will allow residents to self serve 
(and be assisted) in the booking of sports pitches and community rooms

Resource intense process
low occupancy / booking of 

SHDC facilities
Poor customer service

Time and resource
limited take up once built

Allows real time booking of SHDC facilities 24/7 
Minimal administration replacing current fully 

manual process
Improved customer satisfaction

Reduction in Communities staff time that is now 
urgently required following a reduction in staff 

numbers Existing funding

1 PM 10 Days - £1510
1 Developer 25 Days - £3775

1 Content Manager - 50 Days - £7550
1 Designer / UX Resource 16 Days - £2416

Total: £15,251

£0

10
Cautionary contacts 

database
Sarah Wolstenholme-

Smy
Adapt and roll out Cautionary Contact database to SHDC to allow the flagging of customers who 
represent a potential risk to staff

Staff welfare Time and resource
Reduction of risk to staff welfare

Legal action against council
Lower administration cost Existing funding

1 PM 5 Days - £755
1 Designer UX Resource 5 Days - £755
1 Content Manager 10 Days - £1510

Total: £3020

11
Integration of GIS 

mapping - Expansion of 
My Account

Rob Walker
(Stage 3) of Add dynamic maps to the South Holland website:

Add maps to 'report it' function
Reputational risk Time and resource

Improvement to SHDC website
Customer satisfaction

Reduction in customer contacts Existing funding

1 PM 5 Days - £755
1 Developer 15 Days - £2265

Total: £3,020
£0

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
APPENDIX C 
 
Opportunity for efficiencies from digitalisation  
 
Throughout the range of services provided by the Council are a number of operational processes 
that have scope for greater efficiency and that do not provide the best possible service to 
residents. Several processes have multiple steps and handoffs from one group to another, while 
others may contain duplication of effort or a high element of manual intervention. The 
digitalisation of such processes therefore can deliver a faster, more efficient operation that not 
only can achieve savings but, moreover, can deliver better and more accessible services to our 
residents.   
 
An analysis of three services is shown below. This small ‘sample’ represents only a very small 

cross section of the wider range of council services to which digital solutions would be applied. 

However, the indicative efficiency savings shown provide a sense of the scale of benefits – both 

cashable and non-cashable - that the implementation of the Digital Strategy would realise if it 

was implemented across all service areas. 

 
Indicative examples of potential return on investment (ROI)  

 
Shown below are three examples of service elements for which potential efficiency savings have 
been identified. Within these service elements enhanced digital processes would be introduced, 
improving services by reducing avoidable contacts and streamlining existing practices. 
 

 
 

Customer Contact Centre 
(CPBS) 

 
£123k 

 
Housing  

(Rent Account 
Management) 

 
£76k 

 
 

Taxi Licensing Process 
 
 

£7.26k 
 

 
 
Customer Contact Centre 
 
For the Customer Contact Centre the  potential savings figure is the one set out in the CPBS 
Transformation Plan which is due to be presented to Council.  The figure represents the 37% of 
the predicted savings that are attributable to South Holland.  The potential savings figure is 
arrived at by calculating the annual volumes and “cost per contact” of telephone calls, face to 
face interviews and e-mails, and a knowledge of annual volumes in each category.  Potential 
reductions in the overall transaction volumes are then calculated and the savings figure is 
derived.  
 
Although this potential saving is attributable to (and would accrue to) the CPBS Transformation 
Plan, it is included here as it represents an example of the scale of efficiencies which can 
potentially be achieved through greater digitalisation. Furthermore with additional investment 
through the Council’s Digital Strategy there is potential for this figure to be increased as it begins 
to deliver wider efficiencies within services which will further enhance capacity and throughput 

Page 105



within the Customer Contact Centre.  (As has been highlighted elsewhere there is a close 
interface between SHDC and Compass Point.) 
  
Whether these “savings” would be realised or reinvested would be for Members to determine 
in each case. For example it may be preferable to reinvest by, for example, redeploying staff.  
  
In the case of Customer Contact Centre staff a redeployment of staff could support enhanced 
services such as: 
 
 assisting face-to-face those customers who still choose to visit the Council office in 

person 
 providing an assisted digital service to those customers who do not have the means 

or the experience to serve themselves 
 dealing with more complex issues directly, resulting in fewer “hand-offs” and a 

simpler, less frustrating experience for the customer 
 
 

 

Housing 

This indicative efficiency saving was identified as a result of a process mapping exercise to 
identify how the existing process could be made more efficient.  Analysis estimated that Housing 
Officers spend some 3 days per week administering rent accounts which could ultimately be 
avoided if appropriate digital processes were introduced.  The figure of £76k per annum 
represents the cost (in staff time) that could be avoided.  This could also potentially be 
reinvested more efficiently in other areas of the Housing service. 
 
Taxi Licensing 
 
A further example of a service where efficiencies can potentially be realised is the Taxi Licensing 
service.  A specific process mapping exercise was undertaken to identify the impact of digitising 
the process.  The fully redesigned process shows potential savings of 10 hours per week with a 
value of £7,260 per annum. This would allow officer time to be “re-invested” in the following 
priorities: 
 

 Licensing’s commercial services 

 EHT&C Training 

 Better/more inspections 

 Animal Welfare Risk ratings 
 

An interim scanning solution, whilst making some efficiency savings for the Council, continues 
to put the emphasis on the taxi drivers to collect and scan the necessary documents themselves. 
However a complete implementation of this process, based on the full digitalisation of the 
licencing process (Tascomi) will deliver all of the benefits identified above and will also improve 
the customer experience by allowing them to apply on line, submit documents online and make 
an appointment on line without having to scan documents themselves or make several visits to 
Priory Road. 
 

 

 

Page 106



Appendix D Digital Work Programme – risk analysis 

 

Risk of proceeding Solution 
 

Risk of not proceeding Solution 

Political 

Residents resistance to 
change 

Delivering tangible improvements and benefits   Residents and businesses viewing the 
Council as not being pro-active and not 
embracing opportunities. 

Continued launch of new digital services that 
match resident’s experience in other sectors. 

  
  Reputational damage to Council being 

considered as not forward thinking 
Using digital to allow residents connect with 
others – which enhances the Council’s reputation 
with the community and beyond. 

Economic 

 Significant investment 
won’t yield sufficient return 

 Robust analysis of opportunities, potential benefits, customer 
experience and experience across other authorities. Each 
project subject to business case and scrutiny. 

  Front line services cut due to budget cuts Cost saving from digital programme allowing 
services to be maintained and commercial 
opportunities developed. 

Social 

Risk of Digital Exclusion Existing and alternative channels (with assisted service) are 
built into Digital Inclusion strategy. 

  District being isolated  Adoption of digital where appropriate  

Lack of engagements by 
residents 

Systems so easy to use that residents will want to 
 

Residents being isolated Adoption of digital where appropriate 

Lack of engagement by 
services 

Launch of staff engagement strategy   
  

 Technological 

Failure to deliver 
programme 

ICT infrastructure already in place. Dedicated programme / 
project management- Governance of Digital board 

  Council getting left behind - not being able 
to catch up 

Continued programme of improvements  

Lack of suitable applicants 
applying for fixed term 
posts 

Investigate contract resource 
   

P
age 107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Digital Ambition – Member Engagement Sessions FAQs 

(14-16 January 2019) 

 

The following FAQs have been put together to summarise the key questions and comments made by members at a series of engagement sessions, 

designed to give members more detail about the Council’s draft digital and ICT strategy and customer access strategies. If you have any further questions, 

however, please email Andy Prior, Digital and Customer Access Manager, at: andy.prior@breckland-sholland.gov.uk  

Category Question Answer 

Resident Experience There are many residents who are not able – 
or have no wish – to contact the Council 
online. How are they going to be catered for?  

It is recognised that some 25% of residents may fall into this category. All existing means of 
contact – known as ‘channels’ – will remain open so residents will still be able to make 
contact via a landline or a mobile phone.  
 
For those with a mobile phone, progress updates can be received by text messages.  
 
Residents who don’t have a mobile phone can opt to provide a mobile number of a relative 
or friend with a mobile phone as an alternate point of contact for text messages.  
 

Will the Housing system be capable of 
accepting online payments from both end 
users and agents (e.g. for ‘bulk’ 
transactions)?  
 

All online payment transactions will be accepted by the system. 
 
Payer information will be captured in order to provide tracking and reporting. 
 

Why do residents need to log on to create a 
‘My Account’ account? 

Residents can make use of the system without logging on. However if a resident chooses 
to sign up for ‘My Account’, the system will then identify that resident via the login details 
and retrieve all relevant information held. 
 
That might include previous communications relating to a fly-tip or other issues that the 
resident has raised with the Council. This will allow faster and more efficient transactions 
to take place. 
 
(For residents who have created their own account, the Council’s customer services staff 
will only have access to limited elements of that data, such as contact details. Similarly 
Members will only be able to see a limited amount of information about a resident).  
 

P
age 109

mailto:andy.prior@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


Going forward, the residents’ sign up process will be simplified to capture everything 
except a password as part of the transaction. 
 

Can you please make sure that all pieces of 
information about a property or a resident 
are held in one place, and that systems can 
communicate with one another?  
 

Our systems will be linked in such a way that all data relating to a particular property, or to 
a specific resident, are pulled together into one place.  

Will a tenant or a Member be able to self-
serve in order to pull up information about a 
property? 
 

Our systems will support a range of different ‘views’ of the information that is held.  
For example we will create a view of property details for a tenant, and a different view for 
Members.  
 
In this way, the same overall set of data is presented differently for different types of user. 
This will also help to provide Members with the information they will need, e.g. when they 
are asked to assist by a vulnerable resident.  
 
(We will of course ensure that any sensitive personal data is visible only to the resident 
themselves.)  
 

Many of our residents do not have English as 
their first language – how are they going to 
access these new systems?  

This issue is understood and the Council acknowledges that residents for whom English is 
not their first language may need additional help. 
 
Using the online systems, in conjunction with Google Translate, to make contact with the 
Council is a good option for this group as it does not necessitate speaking in English. 
 
The Council has translation services already available in the customer contact centre too, 
and we also recognise that any email or letter-based communications need take account 
of the needs of this group.  
 

How will we inform residents about these 
new systems?  
 

Firstly we’ll make sure that members and officers are able to look at any communications 
before they get sent out to residents. That way we can be sure that we are communicating 
in a clear and precise way.  
 
We’ll use a range of different media for communicating these messages, including social 
media and email, while also considering more traditional methods of communication for 
those harder-to-reach customer groups, such as those without internet access.  
 

P
age 110



Can Members have access to more general 
information such as the Schedule of Works? 

The Council will work towards making the Schedule of Works available online, along with 
other information such as intelligence about properties. 
 

Can reminders be sent out to residents with 
work scheduled? 

Sending this sort of reminder is one of the clear benefits that the new system will provide.  
Reminders will be sent by text message.  
 
As we examine and improve each of our processes we’ll ensure that we take every 
opportunity to build in automated feedback for residents wherever it’s possible.  
 

Will Members be able to look at the system 
during its development and make comments 
or suggestions?  

Yes – the system will be developed on a step-by-step basis (using a methodology called 
‘Agile’) and this will allow Members to look at parts of the systems as they are created and 
make comments. 
 

The voice menu system that residents 
encounter when they call in to the customer 
contact centre is not easy to navigate and has 
too many levels. 
 

We will review the setup of the voice menu system with a view to simplifying it and making 
it less complicated for residents to use, we will also look to reduce the time taken from 
dialling to being placed in the appropriate call queue.   
 

Compatibility & 
Connectivity 

Will the new functions that are being built be 
compatible with other SHDC systems?   

All digital and IT developments are committed to using ‘open’ platforms and interfaces. 
This enables connectivity to other internal systems. Our main web platform, GOSS, sits at 
the heart of all our systems and has access to data across a wide range of service area 
systems.  
 

Broadband improvements – Members 
pointed out that monies spent by SHDC with 
Lincolnshire CC have seen very few positive 
results  

It is acknowledged that despite the large expenditure there remain a number of spots with 
poor broadband coverage in the district. We recognise the seriousness of this situation and 
it is a high priority item within the Commercialisation Directorate.  
 
Even where fast broadband is available, it may not be affordable to some residents, so as 
part of the Council’s draft Customer Access Strategy, we will be working with partners to 
promote any Wi-Fi/internet access that is freely and publicly available. 
 

How flexible is this system?  The system is built to be highly flexible. We will be able to re-use developments and apply 
them to other service areas. 
 

Are iPad models compatible with Office 
365*? 

Yes absolutely; as Office 365 is a cloud-based solution it’s compatible with many different 
types of device including iPads.  
 

P
age 111



* Please note: Following a formal project initiation meeting in January, the roll-out of the 
first phase of Microsoft Office 365 to both members and officers is scheduled for early 
September 2019. This date takes account of the availability of ICT staff and of our delivery 
partner, as well as technical pre-requisites that are necessary in order to ensure 
compliance with national cyber security guidelines. 
 

Service Implications  Will services be improved ‘across the board’ 
and not just at the system level?  

Processes within the service areas will be looked at right through from end-to-end, and we 
will look to provide improvements to all elements. 
 
Resources freed up by the digital transformation can be applied elsewhere, including at 
the point of consumption. 
 

Will we need more customer services staff to 
deliver the strategy’s aims? 

No – in fact there will be opportunities to allocate customer services staff to enhanced 
services & assisted services. We’ll be able to do this in part by reducing “hand-offs” (where 
enquiries are passed through to other departments) and being able to deal directly with 
more complex cases.    
 

Links Will there be any benefit from this program 
to ELDC or BDC? 

All resources engaged in this initiative will be working on solutions for and on behalf of 
SHDC. It may be that some spin-offs could arise for other parties but the resources are 
100% dedicated to SHDC. 
 

Has BDC been involved in this initiative 
and/or its costings? 

No - this is purely an SHDC initiative that will be delivered by SHDC and CPBS resources. 
 

Are ELDC following a similar strategy? SHDC and ELDC are at different points in their digital transformation journey. There are 
some common approaches however, as SHDC and ELDC use some of the same platforms 
such as GOSS. 
 

Will the savings already committed in the 
CPBS transformation plan be impacted? 

No - as stated those savings stated are based on 37% of the overall savings from the CPBS 
transformation plan. There will be no negative impact to these figures from this initiative. 
If anything, the Council’s proposed digital work programme will support CPBS to make its 
savings (the more efficient the Council’s processes are, the more likely the Customer 
Contact Centre are to achieve its channel shift targets).  
 

This work must not jeopardise our 
relationship with CPBS. 

As stated, this initiative will be delivered as a partnership between SHDC and CPBS. CPBS 
has been actively involved in all of the planning and preparation behind this initiative. 
 

Does the Contact Centre figure of £123k 
include ELDC? 

All figures that show indicative cost savings relate specifically to SHDC, including the £123k 
cost saving indicated for the Contact Centre.  

P
age 112



 

Does any of this investment relate to BDC? No – as stated this is purely an SHDC initiative. Breckland has its own, entirely separate, 
programme. 
 

Fly-tipping  How does the fly-tip functionality work with 
the Bartec system?  

The Bartec & GOSS systems are already connected, allowing information to be passed 
between them.  

Where will reports about fly-tipping come 
from? 

All information is held centrally within GOSS, and reports will be generated from there. 
 

How do updates get passed back to 
customers? 

Via text messages to mobile devices, or via email or by residents viewing updates online. 
The information will also be available to view in the residents ‘My Account’ where they 
have one. 
 

Why isn’t the fly-tipping functionality 
delivered via an app? 

The creation of an app would not reduce the required steps that the user has to take so no 
additional benefit would be delivered.  Mobile technology has improved significantly to a 
point where very little can be done via an app that cannot be done directly on a mobile 
phone. An app would require significant investments and maintenance for very little gain.   
 

Can residents see current information about 
ALL fly-tips? 

Technically this is feasible, but we’d need to consider just how public we’d want to be 
about that sizeable amount of data, as well as being sensitive about possible issues with 
regard to personal data. As a minimum we will display a map of current reported fly-tips to 
prevent duplicate reporting. 
 

What happens if a resident reports a fly-tip 
that falls outside of the district’s boundaries? 
(the same postcode can cover up to 3 
different districts) 

The GIS (Geographical Information System) mapping of fly-tip reports means that out-of-
district reports cannot occur. Some specific training may be needed in the contact centre 
to ensure a consistent approach to reports made over the phone.  
 

Will there be any mechanism to allow fly-tip 
reports to be flagged to the local council 
Member?  

We will look into the best way of providing that information, for instance we could list a 
breakdown of fly-tips by ward on the Members’ extranet. There may be other alternatives 
too.  
 

Is there a quick way for a Member to report a 
fly-tip 

We will explore the possibility of pre-loading a shortcut onto Members’ devices and 
prepopulating the contact and address details (via My Account), making reporting a fly-tip 
for members a one-click exercise. 
 

Who can see who has reported the fly-tip? Currently only the service area sees the fly-tip report. As mentioned however we will look 
at ways in which Members could be alerted to any fly-tips reported within their ward.  
 

P
age 113



It must be easy to report over the phone too. Contact via phone into the Customer Contact centre is, of course, a channel for reporting. 
By adopting ‘Assisted Service’ the Customer Contact centre will use the same form that a 
resident would see, making it simple to take information from the caller.  
 

Costs and Benefits  Is there a business plan & ROI for this? Figures for costs, and for indicative savings in a sample of service areas, have been 
provided. Once the necessary digital resource is in place, each project will have a fully-
developed business case/mandate, outlining cashable and non-cashable benefits. 

Where does the £76k saving figure for 
housing come from? 

This figure relates to a specific component of the housing service: the management of rent 
accounts. The figure comes from calculating the reduction of officer time that will be 
required once the process is digitised and the associated time saving. That time saving is 
then ‘translated’ into a cost saving figure based on known hourly rates. This will increase 
Officer time which could be reinvested in supporting those customers in more challenging 
circumstances.   
 

Contact centre – where do savings figures 
come from? 

The CPBS transformation plan contains the details of these savings figures. At a high level 
the savings are derived from time saved on all types of existing transactions (telephone, 
email and face-to-face) by moving some transactions to the digital platform. Volumes of 
non-digital transactions are projected to decline significantly.  
 

Project manager – is that a shared cost with 
BDC? 
 

No – this is funded solely by SHDC. 

If marketable products come out of this 
initiative will SHDC have the intellectual 
property rights to be able to sell them? 
 

Value from any developments that can be proven to have a broad use outside of SHDC can 
be ‘banked’ by GOSS who will then create ‘payment’ by way of credits that SHDC can call 
off when required.  
 

This program costs lots of money – where’s 
the business case? 

The £330k cost is for the full 2-year duration of the program. Many levels of Member 
approval are still needed and officers will provide further details around costs and savings 
ahead of those decisions. Projected savings will of course continue year-on-year, beyond 
the 2-year period of the initiative itself. 
 

Can you confirm that the funding being 
sought is available? 
 

Yes – all funding is identified & available.  

Is 2 developers for 2 years at almost £40k the 
level of investment necessary? 
 

Yes – this figure reflects the costs of the sort of skilled technical resources we need.  
 

P
age 114



3rd party providers can sometimes be 
cheaper - is there scope for us to tap into the 
market. 

The integration work that is needed across all of our service areas is highly specialised. 
Whilst some of the web design work could potentially be provided this way, it is the 
integration that is critical and that work needs to be done by staff who have deep 
familiarity with the SHDC service areas and organisation as well as the Goss system. 
 

 

 

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Customer Access Strategy & Digital  / ICT 
Strategy

P
age 117



Agenda
• What we want to achieve

• Why we want to do this

• Infrastructure

• Progress

• Our residents
– What they are telling us

– Assisted service

• Proposals
– Customer Access Strategy

– Digital & ICT Strategy

• Benefits

• Risks

• Budget

• Governance

• Questions

P
age 118



What we want to achieve – our digital ambition

• More digital options,  full end-to-end 
digital processes – not just forms that 
result in emails

• 24 / 7 access

• Speed up communication processes

• Reduce repeat avoidable contacts 

• Allow residents to contact the Council in 
the way that best suits them

• Free up resource to spend time with those 
that need the most help

P
age 119



An example of what we want to achieve

Improve ‘report a Fly tip’ process to:

1. Improve the user experience

2. Speed up the process

3. Make it more efficient

P
age 120



Improving contact channels

• Adding to current offer – enhancing ways 

to contact council, not removing any

• All current channels to remain, inc. phone 

and face to face 

• Key aspiration: 50% of contacts via digital 

means by 2022

• This still leaves over 50,000 phone calls 

to the Contact Centre per year

P
age 121



Why do we want to do this?

• Increased customer satisfaction for those 
that want to be more digital and agile 

• Provide a more customer focused service

• Allow us to spend more time with the 
people who need personalised help

• Responding to customer expectations

• Provide a more cost effective service

P
age 122



We are IT ready

• High performance, high availability IT Platforms

• Platforms support and underpin the digital 
transformation

• Platforms support agile working strategy

• Hardware refresh programs ongoing for officers 
and members

• Pre-work for Office 365 deployment has 
commenced

P
age 123



Progress

• Most planning processes are paperless

• Garden waste – 71% of applications came from 
online

• Reception
– More ways to pay

– Self Service PC’s 

• Appointments for benefits 

• Payment kiosks

P
age 124



SHDC - Customer Profile

P
age 125



What percentage of our residents want this?

Garden Waste 
sign-up 
achieved 71% 
via digital 
channel

Where we have digitalised it’s the preferred way to engage 

Over 50% of 
South Holland 
Centre tickets 
now purchased 
online 

New digital services at other councils show over 60%

P
age 126



What percentage of our residents want this?

Changing demands and expectations of residents 

Out of work hours Out of work hours

9am

5pm

P
age 127



South Holland’s Acorn Profile

P
age 128



Assisted / Mediated Service

For when customers need extra help

Agent performs tasks 

on behalf of customer

Customer receives 

update notifications

Michelle  verifies the 

customer

Customer can see both 

self-service and 

assisted-service tasks in 

a single view

P
age 129



Help residents to get online
• Providing assisted service to those that need it, via:

– Telephone support from the Council’s Contact Centre

– Self-service hub at Priory Road, where residents can also self-
serve, or get extra help to deal with more complex enquiries.

• Working with key partners, like Age Concern/LCC to signpost 
residents to digital skills training to help them build confidence 
and knowledge 

• Working closely with CAB, who will be providing Universal 
Credit support from 2019

• Championing the need for better broadband across the district 

• Compiling and promoting Wi-Fi locations and details of free-to-
use broadband and digital access across our district, 
supporting residents to access our services

P
age 130



Tenant Portal 
(Housing)

Council House Repairs

Mutual Exchange

Account Balance

Pet Permission

Knowledge base

Give Notice

Tenant Portal – Allowing automation of many manual  housing 
processes

P
age 131



ProposalsP
age 132



Customer Access Strategy – What is it?

P
age 133



Customer Access Strategy – What is it for?

• Explains to our residents the high level of customer 
service we will provide

• Explains to residents what the Council’s ambitions are
• Demonstrates that SHDC is a forward looking Council
• Recognises the increased use of digital and shows how 

this will be used to improve the efficiency of the Council
• Explains that the increased use of digital for those 

residents who want to use it will allow a greater focus to 
be placed on those that need the most help

• Stresses that ALL residents will be provided for
• Takes into account relationship with East Lindsey

P
age 134



ICT & Digital Strategy

• Purpose – sets out how we plan to use technology to 
support efficient and cost-effective service delivery, while 
meeting customer needs.

• Service improvement – with a resilient, secure ICT 
infrastructure now in place, we want to build on this – using 
technology to improve the way customers access our 
services, and to our core business processes.

• Intelligent thinking – our aim is for technology to help 
services access, process and analyse customer data from a 
single source – the more we know about our customers, the 
more relevant and efficient we can be.

• Digital work programme – Costing £330k, this will enable 
us to increase the scope and pace of this digital 
improvement work.   

P
age 135



Examples of Benefits – Cost Avoidance

Contact Centre

• Telephony -
• E Mails
• Face to Face -

£123k

Housing

• Rent Account 
Administration 
Costs – £76K

Taxi Licensing

• Taxi Licensing -
£7.6k

P
age 136



P.E.S.T. risk assessment
Risk of proceeding Solution Risk of not proceeding Solution

Political
Residents resistance to change Delivering tangible improvements and benefits Residents and businesses viewing the Council as 

not being pro-active and not embracing 
opportunities.

Continued launch of new digital services that 
match resident’s experience in other sectors.

Reputational damage to Council being considered
as not forward thinking

Using digital to allow residents connect with 
others – which enhances the Council’s 
reputation with the community and beyond.

Economic

Significant investment won’t yield 
sufficient return

Robust analysis of opportunities, potential benefits, 
customer experience and experience across other 
authorities. Each project subject to business case 
and scrutiny.

Front line services cut due to budget cuts Cost saving from digital programme allowing 
services to be maintained and commercial 
opportunities developed.

Social
Risk of Digital Exclusion Existing and alternative channels (with assisted 

service) are built into Digital Inclusion strategy.
District being isolated Adoption of digital where appropriate 

Lack of engagements by residents Systems so easy to use that residents will want to Residents being isolated Adoption of digital where appropriate

Lack of engagement by services Launch of staff engagement strategy

Technological
Failure to deliver programme ICT infrastructure already in place. Dedicated 

programme / project management- Governance of 
Digital board

Council getting left behind - not being able to 
catch up

Continued programme of improvements 

P
age 137



Funding Requested

• 1 project manager 18 months £54,975

• 2 web developers  - 2 years £176,724

– 1 Content manager

– 1 Developer

• Up to 200 Days contract resource UX / 

Design £40,414

• One off costs to deliver £59,500

Total Cost of project over 2 years: £331,613

P
age 138



Governance

• Funded from the existing investment 
and growth reserve

• Each work stream needs signed off full 
business case approved by Digital / 
ICT / Customer board

• Reporting into EMT 

P
age 139



A final example of what we want to 
achieve

P
age 140



Discussion - Questions

P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4. Customer Access Strategy
	Appendix A for Customer Access Strategy
	Appendix B for Customer Access Strategy
	Appendix C for Customer Access Strategy

	5. ICT & Digital Strategy and Digital Work Programme
	Appendix A for ICT & Digital Strategy and Digital Work Programme
	Appendix B for ICT & Digital Strategy and Digital Work Programme
	Appendix C for ICT & Digital Strategy and Digital Work Programme
	Appendix D for ICT & Digital Strategy and Digital Work Programme
	Appendix E Digital FAQ doc FINAL
	Appendix F Customer Access Strategy - Digital &  ICT Strategy Presentati...


